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ASTROBANK GROUP
Consolidated Management Report

The Board of Directors submits fo the shareholders of AstroBank Limited (“the Bank”) their Report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017. The Annual Report
and the consolidated financial statements relate to AstroBank Limited (‘the’ Bank”) together with its
subsidiaries (“the Group”). The Bank was the holding company of the Group as at 31 Decamber 2017.

1 Principal activities

The principal activity of the Bank, which is unchanged from last year, is the provision of banking and financial
services.

The principal activities of the property subsidiaries, which are unchanged from last year are the holding and
administration of property acquired by the Bank in debt satisfaction. A separate subsidiary operates as an

insurance broker,

All Group companies are set out In Note 33 of the consolidated financial statements.

2 Branches

The Bank operates in Cyprus through 13 Retail Banking branches (2018 1 3}, 4 Service Centers for Large
Corporate Companies and SMEs (2016: 4), and 2 Service Centers for Interational Business Services (2018:

3 Share premium decrease due to capital reduction, change In sharehoiding & capital Injection

On 8 July 2018, an agreement for the sale and purchase of shares was signed between Piraeus Bank S.A.
(‘the Seller”) and Holding M. Sehnaoui SAL (“the Buyer”), a company incorporated in Lebanon. Under this
agreement, the Seller agreed to sell shares of Piraeus Bank (Cyprus) Limited to the Buyer and the Buyer
agreed to subscribe along with various investors for new shares in the Bank with the Seller agreeing to waive
its pre-emption rights. The obligations of the Seller to sell the shares and the obligations of the Buyer to
purchase the shares and te subscribe for or procure the subscription of the shares were conditional on the
approval of all relevant Supervisory Authorities. All such approvals were granted on 20th December 2018
and on 28th December 2016 §70.798 shares were sold by Piraeus Bank S.A. to Holding M. Sehnaoui SAL
("HMS") and foltowing an unanimous resolution of the Board, 10.752.689 ordinary shares were issued and
ailotted, at a price of €3,72 per share to a group of private investors led by Holding M. Sehnaoui SAL. -

On 2 November 2017, the Board of Directors unanimously approved the reduction of the share premium of
the Bank by €99.285 543 (representing the accumulated losses as per the separate financial statements of
the Bank as at 31 December 2018} for the purpose of writing off the accumulated losses by an equivalent

amount.

On 21 December 2017 all necessary regulatory and other approvals and consents were granted for the
reduction of the share premium and the write off of the accumulatad losses of the Bank.

The movements in share capital and share premium during the year are presented in Note 28 to the financiai
statements.

4 Change of the Parent Bank’s name

On 30t March 2017, the Bank changed its name from Pirasus Bank (Cyprus) Ltd fo AstroBank Limited.

5 Future developments/prospects

The Group's strategy is focused towards organic growth of the loan porifolio and the client base as well as,
if opportunities present themseives, acquisitions that would lead to volume and cost synergies for the Bank,

In the short to medium term, priority for Executive Management remains the reduction of non-performing
loans through restructurings, debt for asset swaps and negotiated settlements. :

The Group’s sirategic targets include the reduction of aperating expenses. In line with this strategic target/
objective , a Voluntary Early Retirement Scheme aiming for a reduction in personnel expenses and efficiency

improvement was successfully completed in January 2018,



_ ASTROBANK GROUP
Consolidated Management Report (continued)

5 Future developments/prospects (continued)

The Group is at an advanced stage of negotiations for the acquisition of the assets, the liabilitics and the
business of USB Bank PLC. In principle approval has been obtained from the Central Bank of Cyprus,

& Results overview
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set on pages 17 and 18.
Income statement analysis

Met interest income (NI} for 2017 totaled €21,921.536 (2016: €23.370.561) and net interest margin (NIM)
for the year was 2,0% (2016: 2,2%). The NIi and NIM reduction primarily reflect the lower yigld -on liquid
assets and competitive pressures on loan yields. Total net non-interest income for 2017 amounted to
€15 979 930 (2016: B.967.875). The increase reflects higher net fee and commission income across all
categories, galns rather than losses on disposal of debt securities and income on trading book activity.

Total expenses for 2017 amounted to €29.722.144, increased by 17,8% compared 2016, mainly due to the
increase in travelling expenses, marketing expensées, legal and professional consultancy fees and software
maintenance costs (further analysis in Note 11). The increase in the IT related costs is primarily due to the .
fact that as of the end of 2016 the Bank is no longer a subsidiary of Pirasus Bank S.A..

Operating profit before impairment charges and othier provisions in 2017 amounted fo €8.179.322 compared
{o €7.099.372 in 2016. Provision charges for the impairment of customer loans and advances for 2017
totaled €280.503 compared to €15.421.162 in 2016. Profit after tax totaled €5.046.824 compared to a loss
of €7.084.579 in 2018. '

Statement of Financial Position analysis

The Group's total assets amounted to €1.245 141.054 (2016: €1.197.000.822) as at 31 December 2017,
increased by 4,0% compared to December 2016

On 31 December 2017, the Core Equity Tier 1 (CET1) and total capital adequacy ratio of the Bank amounted
to 17,0% compared to 15,2% as at the end of 2016 (Note 34).

As at the end of 2017, the Bank maintained healthy liquidity levels, with a euro stock liquidity ratio of 36,5%
and a foreign currency stock liquidity ratio of 98,3% with the regulatory minima being 18% and 50%
respectively. On 1 January 2018, the local regulatory liquidity requirements were abolished and in December
2017 the Central Bank of Cyprus introdiced a macro-prudential measure in the form of liquidity add-on that
‘was imposed on top of the Liquidity Coverage Ratioc with effect from 1January 2018.

The liquidity coverage ratio stood at 323% compared to the minimum requirement of 100%.
Deposits

Customer deposits totaled €1.103,199.997 at 31 December 2017 (2016. €1 072.463.266), increased by
2,9%, mainly due to increased current account balances of retail and foreign customers. They comprised of

£€919.717 914 deposits in Euro and €183.482.083 deposits in foreign currencies, mostly US Dollars.

Doposits by type H.92.9017 % of total deposits 3.12.2018 % of total
"Current accounts 45T B5% TA5T6m i
Savings accounts  €63.9m T 55% €49,3m 4,5%

Term deposits . €436 4% €58t im 30.5%

Total deposits €1.103,2m €1,0725m




ASTROBANK GROUP
Consolidated Management Report (continued)
€ Results overview (continued)
Statement of Financial Position analysis (continued)
Loans and advances to customers
Gross loans, incorporating the change in accounting policy as explained in Note 2, totaled €723.612.814 at
31 December 2017 compared to €766.568.638 at 31 December 2016 (Note 17). The reduction in gross loans

of 5,6% was to a large extent driven by the fact that loan repayments and debt for asset swaps exceeded
new disbursements and interest charged.

The net loans to deposits ratio stood at 46,5% as at 31 December 2017 (2016: 51,9%)

Gross loans balance by type:
31.12.2017 31.12.2676 Variance %
Consumer €73,9m €67.7m 9.2%
Housing : €125,6m ' €135,0m 7%
Credit cards ' —&am ~&Bam 5%
Comorate €516,8m €556,3m 7.1%
Gross loans €235m : €786,8m 5%
Loan Fortfolio Quality

Loans in arrears for more than 90 days (90+ DPD) were reduced by €35.440.750 (11,2% reduction) during
the year ended 31 December 2017 to €280.962.187. The decrease was primarily due to the restructuring
activity, inchuding debt for asset swaps. 80+ DPD loans accounted for 38,8% of gross loans (80+ DPD ratio),
compared to 41,3% at 31 December 2016. The provisioning coverage ratio of 80+ DPD ioans increased to
74,8% at 31 December 2017 (31 December 2016: 68,5%).

31 December 2017 31 December 2016 ‘
: € % of gross loans € % of gross loans
90+ DPD ' 280.962,187 38,8% 316.402.837 41,3%
Of which: -
-Loans with amears for over 90 17.197.067 2,3% 14.863.165 2,0%
days but not impaired . ‘ :
-Impaired loans ' 263.765.120 36,5% 301.430.772 38,3%

The rate of reduction in Non-Performing exposures (NPEs) has been lower than that of loans in arrears for
more than 80 days due to the strict exit criteria imposed by the Implementing Technical Standards of the
European Banking Authority issued in 2014. The level of NPEs has been reduced by 9,2% to €406.431.430
(2016: €447.478,546) , representing 56,2% (2018: 58.4%) of gross loans. The provision coverage ratio of
NPEs, stood at 51,7% at 31 December 201 7, compared to 47,0% st 31 December 2018,

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
. € % of gross loans € % of gross loans
On balance sheet NPEs as per | 408.431.430 56,2% 447.478.546 . 58,4%
EBA definition . ‘
Of which: :
-NPEs with forbearance measures, 28.061.746 . 3,8% 26.534.049 3,5%
no impairments and no arrears '
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Consolidated Management Report (continued)

6 Results overview (continued)
Statement of FInancial Position analysis (continued)
Loans and advances to customers (continued)

Accumulated impairment losses amounted to €21 0.093.289 as at 31 December 2017 (20716‘ €210.427.135)
_and represented 29,0% of the total gross loans (2016: 27,4%).

Further details on the Loan portfolio of the Group are disclosed in Notes 17 and 34 to the Financial
Statements. .

IFRSY implementation Program

in Jduly 2014, the Intemational Accounting Standards Board |ssued the final version of IFRSS Financial
Instruments which is effective from 1st January 2018. Following the current implementation status of [FRS®
and based on current estimates, the Bank approximates the adoption of IFRS 8 to lead to an overall decrease
in shareholders' equity of about €6,2 million net of tax mainly driven by the new impairment requirements
The Benk will adopt the fransitional arrangements in order to mitigate the negative impact on CET 1 capital
arising from expected credit losses provisions: Under Regulation 2017/2395, the Bank is allowed to include
in its CET 1 capital a portion of the increased ECL provisions over a transitional period of 5 years. Applying
regulatory transitional arrangements, the' impact on the Bank's CET 1 ratio as at 1st January 2018 is a
reduction of approximately 95 basis points on a fully loaded basis which is manageable and well within the
Group's capital plans. The final impact is subject to further parameter calibrations.

Debt for asset swaps implemented during 2017

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group on-boarded €33.493.849 (2016; €24.350.000) of
assets via the execution of debt for asset swaps and completed disposals of €1.300.520 (2016: €923.000)

Key performance Indicators:

The table below shows some key indicators of the Group’s performance for the years ended 31 December
2017 and 31 December 2016:

Key Performance Indicators 2017 2017 2016 2016
- After change | -Priorte - After change -Prior to
inaccounting | changein in accounting change in
policy accounting policy . accounting
_ . policy | . policy
90+ Days Past Due | 38,8% 32,8% 41,3% 38,5%
Ratio .
Asset Quallty s _ : :
90+ Days Past Due 74,8%. 67,0% 66,5% 69,0%
Provision Coverage . : ’
Ratio :
NPE Ratlo §6.2% 51,8% £84% ' 55,0%
| NPE Provision 51.7% 42,4% 0% | spo%
Coverage Ratio i
Capital - | ceT Y and Total 7% . 152%
’ | Capital (Transitiona) ' .




ASTROBANK GROUP
Consolidated Management Report (continued)

€ Results overview (continued)

Key performance indicators {continued)

Key Performance Indicators : 2017 2017 2016 2018
- ' - After change -Prior to - After change -Prior to
in accounting change In in accounting | - change in
policy accounting policy accounting
policy policy
. Net interest margin 2,0% | 2,2%
Efficiency
Fee and commission 25,5% 23,2%
income/Total income
Cost/ Income 78 4% 78,0%
Total assets (€m) €1.245m €1.187m
Balance Sheet
Total Gross Loans €724m €658m - E76Im €709m
(€m) :
Total Deposits (€m) €1.103m . €1.072m
Liquid assets / ' 55,2% 51,4%
Liquidity Deposits
Net Loans/Deposits 46,5% 51.9%
Liquidity Coverage 323% . : 337%
Ratio ) :
Retum on Average 0,4% 0.6%
Profitability Assets _ ‘
Retun on Average 4.6% $,2%
Equity ‘ .

7 Principal risks and Opaerating Environment

The principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group are credit risk, liquidity risk, iiﬁgaﬂon risk, market
risk and the risk on changes In the fair value of proparty, as disclosed in Notes 2,3 and 34 of the financial
statements These risks are monitored and mitigated through various control mechanisms and processes.

The Group’s financial performance is highly correlated te the economic and operéﬁng conditions in Cyprus
and will consequently benefit from the country’s expected recovery. The recovery in Cyprus maintains g
solid pace, due mainly to a tightening labor market and stronger consumer spending In 2017, the Cypriot

Supporting the positive outiook is the rise in business and consumer confidence. The European
Commission’s economic sentiment indicator for Cyprus showed a remarkable improvement, from a low of
67,5 in Apri! 2013 to a record 117,8 in February 2018, well above the euro area average of 114,1. Services
and retail trade recorded the greatest improvement in confidence. The tourism-dependent economy is also
benefiting from an influx of international visttors and tourism revenue is up 8,6% from December 20186.

In the bankihg sector funding conditions continued to improve against a backdrop of favourable
developments regarding non-performing exposures. In the banking sector

6



ASTROBANK GROUP
Consolidated Management Report (continued)

7 Principal risks and Operating Environment (continued)

there have been mgmfcant improvements in funding cenditions and asset quality. Total deposits increased
marginally by 0,8% in the year, with resident deposits increasing by 3,3%. Loan deleveraging continued in
the year with tofal loans cutstanding dropping by 7,1% and loans to residents dropping by 4,8%.

In this context of a strengthening economy and narrowing imbalances, the Cyprus sovereign hag benefited
from a series of upgrades. Most recently in Apnl 2018, Fitch Ratings upgraded its Long-Term Issuer Default
ratings to 'BB+' with positive outiook. -

While considerable progr_ess has been achieved, Cyprus continues to face challenges primarily in relation
to public and private indebtednags, the still high levels of non-performing loans and a possible deterioration
" of the extemal environment

The Group’s primary focus is the improvement in its loan quality and the strive for sustainable profitability.
its strong capital and liquidity position provides it with an important competitive advantage on which to base
its future growth. Emphasis 1s also piaced on reducing its funding costs, Improving the return on its liquid
assets, boosting and diversifying its fee and commission income and containing operating costs.

8 Risk Management

Like any banking group, the Group is exposed to a variety of risks, the most significant of which are credit
risk, liquidity risk and market risk (including foreign exchange risk, interest rate nsk and price risk}. The Group
mionitors and manages these risks through various control mechanisms.

The. Group's risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of the economic environment in
which it operates and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. Risk
management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group; to set appropriate
risk limits and controls, te monitor risks and to ensure adherence to limits. The risk management policies are
reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group's activities.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk
management framework. The Board of Directors is assisted in this task by the Risk Commitiee and the Audit
Committee which assess the adequacy.of the nsk management framework and the system of internal
controls of the Group respectively. :

The nature of the main risks that the Group is _exposéd to as well-as the Group’s risk man'ag‘ément policies
are described in Note 34 of the financial statements.

9 curre'n.cy Risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments and assets and liabilities fuctuetes due to
changes In exchange rates. Currency risk arises from a positive or negative open position in @ foreign
currency, exposing the Group to changes in the relevant exchange rate. This risk may arise from the holding
of assets in one currency funded by liablities in another currency or from spot or forward foreign exchange
frades or even from derivatives. The Group enters into foreign exchange fransactions in order to
accommodate customer needs and to hedge its open positions. The Group's Treasury depariment also
enters. into spot foreign exchange fransactions within predefined and approved fimits, as well as into
derivative product transactions such as foreign exchange forward contracts and foreign exchange swaps.

In or'dér to manﬁge_ currency risk, the Assets and Liabilites Committee (ALCO) approves total foreign
exchange position limits. The approved limits are systematically monitored and reviewed and are assessed
at least annually. These limits may be modified, according to the strategy of the Group and the prevailing
market conditions. '

10 interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises as a result of liming differences on the interest rate repricing of financial assets and
liabilities. Interest rate nsk arises mainly from interest bearing banking assets and liablfities.

At 31 December 2017, the Group's interest bearing asset and liabilities amounted to €1.110.706.770 (2016
€1.098.268.080} and €1.105.680.671 (2016: €1.074.700.993} respectively.

7
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Consolidated Management Report (continued)

11 Credit risk

In the ordinary course of its business the Group is exposed to credit risk which is monitored through various
control mechanisms. Credit risk is the risk of financia! loss to the Group if a customer and/or other
counterparty to a financial instrument fails o meet their contractual obligations and arises primarily from
Group’s loans and advances to customers and investment in debt securities, Credit risk management
focuses on ensuring a disciplined risk culture, transparency and rational risk taking, based on international

common practices.

Credit risk management methodologies are modified to reflect the changing financial environment. The
various credit risk assessment methods used are revised annually or whenever deemed hecessary and are
adjusted according to the Group’s overall strategy and short-term and long-term objectives. :

The Group's credit risk arises from placements at other banks amounting to €356.625.902 (2078:
€393.111.224), mandatory deposits with the CBC in a minimum reserve account to €10.096.191 (2016:
€28.3498.812), ioans receivable from customers €513.519.525 (2016: €556.441.503), available for sale
financial assets €214.854 860 (2016: €74.074.782), debt securities €NIL {2015: €44.288.759) derivative

controf credit risk.
12 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with its
financial liabillties that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.

Liquidity risk is monitored and controlied by the Treasury Department, the Finance Department and the Risk
Manzagement Department of the Bank. The conformity with the regulations set by the applicable Supervisory

stressed conditions without incurring unacceptable losses.

The monitoring and management of liquidity risk is achieved through the use and monitoring of the following:

a. Balance in the Minimum Reserve Account as specified by the applicable Supervisory Authorities.
b.  Maturity mismatch indices between financial assets and financial liabilties for periods of up to one
m .

c. Availal:)!e liquid assets to customer deposits ratios, in Euro and foreign currencies.-
d. Liquidity Coverage Ratio based on EU regulation 2015/81

Despite the fact that some deposits can be withdrawn without notice if requested, the diversity in number
and type of deposits limits significant fluctuations and consequently contributes in its majority to a stable

deposit base.
During the year ended 31 December 2017 the Bank’s EUR liquidity regulatory ratios were at ail times within

the corresponding CBC iimits and there were no violations, whereas the foreign currency liquidity regulatory
i aximum limit excess 4,87%). As from 1 January 2018 the Local

As at 31 December 2017, at the date of this Annual Report and throughout the year ended 31 December
2017, the Bank was in compliance with the required prudential liquidity indicator of the European Centrg|

Bank.

Foilowing the new rules, since 1 January 2018 and as at the date of this Annuel Report there were no
breaches in liquidity requirements.
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13 Going concern
The Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Management, taking into consideration the factors and uncertainties that existed at the reporting date, is
satisfied that the Group has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future for the following
reasons:

» On 31 December 2017 the Bank maintained healthy liquidity levels, and was in compliance with the
local protective liquidity requirement and the minimum Liquidity Coverage Ratio of the EU,

+ On 31 December 2017 the Bank maintained a capital adequacy ratio at 17,0% higher than the
minimum required ratio, _ '

» The significant reduction in Non-Performing exposures (NPEs), which have decreased by 9,2%
during 2017 and totaled €406.431.430 at 31 December 2017 and the increase of provisions
coverage to 51,7% compared to 47,0% at 31 December 20186;

» The significant reduction of loans in arrears for more than 90 days (90+ DPD), which have decreased
by 11,2% during 2017 and fotaled €280.962.187 at 31 December 2017 and the increase of
provisions coverage to 74,8% compared to 66,5% at 31 December 2016;

The improvements in the macroeconomic conditions prevailing in Cyprus;
The regular monitoring of the performance of the Group against business plangs and targets,
The diversity as well as the improving credit rating of the liquid assets held.

14 Capital Base and Adequacy

The primary objective of the Bank’s capital management is to ensure compliance with the relevant regulatory
capital requirements and maintenance of heaithy capital adequacy ratios in order to support its growth and
maximise the value for its shareholders. '

On 31 December 2017, the Bank maintained a capital adequacy ratio at 17,0%. Details of the capital
management are disclosed in Note 34 to the Financial statements

15 Dividends

The Board of Directors does not recommend a dividend payment for the year 2017. The profit for the year
is transferred {0 reserves.

16 Changes in group structure
During the year ended 31 December 2017 four new-wholly owned subsidiaries were incorporated.

Other than the above, there were no changes in the group structure of the Bank during the year ended 31
December 2017.

The Bank was a wholly owned subsidiary of Piraeus Bank S.A. up until the 28th of December 2016. Following
the completion of the transaction between Piraeus Bank S.A. and the group of investors led by Holding M.
Sehnaoui SAL on 28% December 2016, the following shareholders held more than 10% of the issued share
capital of the Bank:

Holding M. Sehnaoul SAL_ I I YA L
PIRAEUS BANK S.A. 17,64%
WG Cyprus (Holding) SAL 12,40%
Bassam Diab 1 1083%

Another 11 investors, with shareholdings of less than 10% each, held 41,62% of the Bank's share capital
as of that date, and as at the date of this Annual Report. ‘ ‘
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17 Corporate social responsibility

of entrepreneurship by being a strategic partner in the program “Junior Achievement - Entrepreneurship in
Education” and also Supports various cultural events and environmental protection initiatives for promoting

ecological awareness in Cyprus.

18 Board of Directors

The Members of the Board of Directors of the Bank as at 31 December 2017 and as at the date of this
Annual Report are shown on page 1.

18 Remuneration of the Board of Directors
The remuneration of the Board of Directors is disclosed in Note 36 of the Financia Statements.

20 Related party transactions

The related party transactions of the Group are disclosed in Note 36 of the Financial Statements.

21 Events after the reporting period
Events after the reporting period are disciosed in Note 37 of the Financial Statements.

22 Independent Auditors

The appointment of 3 statutory auditor or an audit firm shall not exceed a maximum duration of nine years
for pubiic-interest entities based on EU Regulation No 537/2014 of the European Parliament and of the

Council dated 16 April 2014.

In November 2017, the Bank applied for a two year extension of the maximum duration of the audit
engagement to the Cyprus Public Audit Oversight Board. The Cyprus Public Audit Oversight Board granted

the extension of the duration of the audit engagement by one year,
Following to the above, the Bank proceeded with a tender process complying with EU Reguiation No

537/2014 requirements. The Board of Directors will recommend the appointment of Ernst & Young as the
Bank’s independent Auditors for the year ended 31 December 2018 at the next Annual General Meeting,

By Order of.the Board,

/:" S—
v Vv j
George Appios
-Executive Direcior and Chief Executive Officer
9 May 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of AstroBank Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements of AstroBank Limited (the “Bank”)
and its subsidiaries (together the "Group”) give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Union and the requiirements of the Cyprus Companies Law, Cap. 113.

‘What we have audited
We have audited the consolidated financial statements which are presented in pages 17 to 89 and comprise:

. the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2017;

. the Consolidated Income Statement for the year then ended;

. the Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income for the year then ended;

a the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended; .

. the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended; and

. ‘the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, which include a summary of significant

accounting policies.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements is International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Unjon and the
requirements of the Cyprus Companies Law, Cap. 113.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit

of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to Provide a basis for our
opinion,

8 e .

PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltd, PurC Central, 43 Demastheni Severi Avenue, C¥-1080 Nicosia

P O Box 21612, CY-1501 Nicosia, Cyprus
T: +357 - 22 555 ooo, F:+357 - 22 555 001, WU, DLC.com.cly

FricewaterhoutsCoopars L1d is & private company registered in Cyprus {Reg. Na.143594). lis registered office is &1 3 Thamisiocles Darvis Strest, CV-1088, Nicosia. A list of the
company’s directors, Including for individuals tha Prasent and formes (Hf any) narme end sumame and natlonsilty, if nat Cypriat and for legal entities tha COrporate name, [s kept by
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Independence

these requirements and the IESBA Code,

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
audit of the consclidated finanejal statements of the current
financial statements

context of our audit of the consolidated

thereon, and we do net provide a separate opinion on these

incorporating the most

significant risks of materia] misstatements,
including assessed risk of material misstatements due to fraud

as a whole, and in forming our opinion
matters, -

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter

Impairment of loans and advances to
customers
Impairment of loans and advances to
customers is a key audit matter due to the
significance of the balance, complexity and
subjectivity over estimating the timing and
the amount of impairment,

As at 31 December 2017, gross loans and
advances to customers amounted to
€723.612.814 (2016:€766.868.638) and the
related impairment provision amounted to
€210.093.289 (2016:€210.427 135).

* Our audit procedures in this area inciuded

among others:

assessing and testing the design and
operating effectiveness of the controls
over the Bank’s loan impairment Process
such as review of Provisioning Committee
and Recovery Banking Unit’s minutes in
order to identify impaired loans, ensure
that the impairment methodology reflects
the Committee’s decisions and that
appropriate actions are undertaken

Relevant disclosures in relation to loans and following the Committee’s
advances to customers and the related recommendations. ‘
impairment provisions are presented in * for individunally assessed Joans and
Notes 3, 17 anid 34 of the consolidated advances to customers:

financial statements,

assessed the appropriateness of the
individual loan impairment

The basis of the impairment Pprovision policy methodology;

is presented in the accounting policies and *  assessed accuracy and completeness
further analysed in Note 2 of the consolidated of data input into the individua]
financial statements. impairment model;

The estimation of the impairment loss
allowance on an individua] basis requires the
‘Group to make judgements to determine
whether there is objective evidence of
impairment and to make assumptions about
the financial conditions of the borrowers and

ensyred mathematical accuracy of
the individual impairment mode]
through re-performance;

performed credit assessment on a
sample of loans assessing the
appropriateness of the impairment
loss allowance and reasonableness of

expected future cash flows for the repayment s

of the eredit facility either through the gha;‘l‘:“;:tigi]ﬁz““dfeggﬂeﬁh

operations of the customer or the realisation of the Il;;t ol 5 ue

of the collateral (for example, the business Heo aeral i

prospects for the customer, the realisable * for collectively assessed loans and
advances to customers:

value of collateral, the Bank’s position
relative to other claimants and the likely cost
-and duration of the work-out process).
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Key Audit Matter How our andit addressed the Key Audit
Matter '
* assessed the appropriateness of
Advances that have been assessed on an the eollective impairment Ioan
individual debtor level and for which no methodology;
objective evidence afimpairmen‘t GXiStS, are »  assessed whether the mode]]ing
grouped with non-significant advances and assumptions used considered the
are classified in groups with similar credit relevant risks and were
risk characteristics in order to be collectively reasonable in light of historical
assessed for losses ineurred but not yet ience, economic climate
reported. The estimation of the impairment I nt o ::raﬁonal ’ d
loss allowance on a collective basis is the ci P + 1? tli10 e
subjective in nature and is based on € mcum_s ances of the
estimation of probabilities of default. borrowers; .
*  ensured mathematical accuracy of
the collective impairment model

through re-performance; and

= assessed whether disclosures in
relation to loans and advances to
customers and the respective
impairment thereon in the
consolidated financial statements
appropriately reflect the Bank’s
exposure to credit risk,

The resulis of the above mentioned audit
- Procedures were considered to be satisfactory.

Reporting on other information

The Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Consolidated Management Report, but does not include the cansolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In eonnection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have

nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of the Board of Directors and those charged with governance Jfor the
Consolidated Financial Statements :

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union and the requirements of the Cyprus Companies Law, Cap. 113, and for such internal

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability te continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of aceounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate
the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do 50,

Thase charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolida_ted financial statements as a

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional

scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financia] statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinfon. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, Inisrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the cireumstances, but not for the burpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors,

14






v Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to medify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
andit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report, However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achjeves atrue and fair view.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit.
We remain solely responsible far our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our andit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independencg, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are

therefore the key audit matters.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Pursuant to the requirements of Article 10(2) of the EU Regulation 537/2014 we provide the following
information in our Independent Auditor’s Report, which is required in addition to the requirements of

International Standards on Auditing.
‘Appointment of the Auditor and Period ‘of Engagement

We were first appointed as auditors of the Bank on 24 September 2007 by its shareholders for the audit of
the financial statements for the period from 29 December 2006 (date of incorporation) to 31 December
2007. Our appointment has been renewed annually, since then, by shareholder’s resolution. The Bank
obtained its banking license on 2¢ November 2007 and accordingly the first financial year after the Bank
qualified as an EU PIE was for the year ended 31 December 2008, Since the initial appointment as auditgrs
of the Bank on 24 September 2007, the total period of uninterrupted engagement appointment was eleven

years.
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Consistency of the Additional Report to the Audit Committee

We confirm that our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements expressed in this report is
consistent with the additional report to the Audit Committee of the Bank, which we issued on 8 May 2018
in accordance with Article 11 of the EU Regulation 537/2014.

Provision of Non-audit Services

We declare that no prohibited non-audit services referred to in Article 5 of the EU Regulation 537/2014
and Section 72 of the Auditors Law of 2017 were provided. In addition, there are no non-audit services
which were provided by us to the Group and which have not been disclosed in the consolidated financial

statements or the consolidated management report.
Other Legal Requirements
Pursuant to the additional requirements of the Auditors Law of 2017, we report the following:

* Inour opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of our audit, the consolidated

management report has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Cyprus
Companies Law, Cap. 113, and the information given is consistent with the consolidated financial

statements,

¢ Inlight of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and its environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we are required to report if we have identified material misstatements in the

consolidated management report. We have nothing to report in this respect.

Other Matter

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Bank’s members as a body in
accordance with Article 10(1) of the EU Regulation 537/2014 and Section 69 of the Auditors Law of 2017
and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other
purpose or to any other person to whose knowledge this report may come to.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Androulla S. Pittas.

iy ..
) ieeee

Androtlla 8.Pittas ,

Certified Public Accountant and Registered Auditor
for and on behalf of

PricewaterhouseCoopers Limited
Certified Public Accountants and Registered Auditors

Nicosia, 9 May 2018
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ASTROBANK GROUP

Consolidated Income Statement
for the year ended 31 December 2017

Note 2017 2016
€ €

Interest income 4 30 524.752 34.024.198
Interest expense 5 {8.603.216) {10.653.637)
Net interest income 21.921.536 23.370.561
Fee and commission income 6 11.497.309 9.416.291
Fee and commission expense 7 {1.846.771) {1.806.937)
Net fee and commission income 9.650.538 7.509.354
Other income 8 4.144.168 1.850.854
Net income from held for trading financlal assets 1.242,371 .
Gain / (loss) on disposal of debt securities 942 853 (501.573)
Operating Income 37.901.466 32.338.236
Staff expenses . ] (17.944,075) (17.040.076)
Depreciation and amortisation 10 (762.076) (594,066)
Operating expenses 1" 11.025.093 (7,603.822)
Profit before provisions 8.179.322 7.099,372
Impairment of property, plant and equipment and other
impairments (217.354) (756.970)
Provislon for impairment of loans and advances 17 (980.503) (15.421,162)
Other expenses 12 —_— - 6.687
Profit / {loss) before tax 6.981.465 (9.115.447)
Income tax (charge)/ credit 13 {1.934.641) 2.030,868
Profit / (loss) for the year —5.046.824 .084.579
Profit/ (loss) for the year attributable to :
-Owners of the Parent Bank 5.046.824 (7.084.579)
-Non-controlling interest B -
Profit / (loss) for the year -5.046.824 {7.084.579)

The notes on pages 22 to 89 are an integral part of these donsolidated financial statements.
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‘ASTROBANK GROUP

Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2017

gt Note 2017 2016
Yoo € €
Profit/ (loss) for the year after tax 5.046.824 {7.084.679)
Other comprehensive Income:
ltems that are or may be reclassified
subsequently to profif or loss:
Transfer of the reserve due to realised
losses on disposal of available for sale _
financial assets 29 (275 929) -
Available for sale financial assets — fair _
value reserve 29 8.368.905. 177195
Other comprehensive Income for the .
year after tax - 8.092.976 177.195
Total comprehensive income for the 13.139.800 (6.907.384)
year
Tolal comprehensive loss for the year
ettributable to:
-Owners of the Parent Bank -43.130,800 (6.907.384)
-Non-controlling interest _ - . -
Total ‘compmhen'slve income/{loss) for - 13.139.800 (6.907.384)
the year

ltems in the statement above are .disclosed net of tax. The income tax relating to each compohent of other
comprehensive income Is disclosed in Note 13, :

The notes on pages 22 to B9 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Assets

Cash and balances with Central
Banks

Placements with other banks
Receivables from debt securities
Loans and other advances to
customers

Available for sale financial assets

Financial assets at fair vajue through

profit or loss
Derivative financial instruments
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Investment properties

Deferred tax asset

Other assets

Total assets

Liabllitles -
Amounts due to other banks and
deposits from banks

Deposits and other customer
accounts

Derivative financial instruments
Current tax liabllity

Deferred tax liability

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Equity .

Share capital

Share premium

Other reserves

Retained earnings / (Accumuiated

losses)

Total equity attributable to the
owners of the Parent Bank
Non-controliing interest

Total equity

Total equity and Nabliities

Note

24
25

32

26
27

ASTROBANK GROUP
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2017

2017
€

326.932.139
51.628.291

513.519.525
226.859.008

28.035.336
32.267
24.085.002
935.780
64.730.039
5.718.155

2.666.421

2.480.674
1.103.199.997

470.110
91.491

5.121.260

116.197.483

116,197.483
1.245.141,054

2016
€

845.329.285
87.114.624
44.288.750

556.441.503

86.278.931

11.858.747
1.068.974
24.085.751
180.444
31.527.420
7.641 115.

1.175.198

2.237.738
1.072.463.255

1.547.932
80.533
883,393

16.730.288
1.093.943.138

14.113.487
187.840.247
315,057

{89.211,108)
103.057.683

103.0;7.683
1.187.000.822

On 9 May 2018 the Board of Directors of AstroBank Limited approved these consclidated financial

statements for issue.

George Appios, Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer

Marics Savvides, Director, Deputy Chief Executive Officer "“"g

Marina Strovolidou, Chief Financial Officer %

The notes on pages 22 to 89 are an integralpart of these consalidated financial statements.
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ASTROBANK GROUP

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31 December 2017

Atiributable to the owners of the Parent Bank

Share Share Fair value Retlained Total Total Total
Capital Premium  reserve and earnings Non- equity
other (Note 29) conirolling -
reserves Interest
(Note-28)
€ € : €. 13 € . € €

2016
Balanco at 1% January 5360758 158682933 _ 137,862 _ (92.126.629) _69.965.084 _ .. . 69.965.084
Comprehansive loss
Loss for the year = g 2= - (7084 579) _{(7.084570V ______ - _ (7.084.579).
- Other comprehensive income '
Revaluation of available for sale
financial assets - . - - 177.185 : - 7195 - 177.195
Compreherigive loss for the .
yoar 2016 ‘ . - ‘ e 177.185 (7.084.579)  {6.807.384) - _ (8,907.284)
Transactions with the ownets
of the Group :
Contributions and distributions
Issue of ordinary shares (Note 28)  10,752.689 29.247.314 - - _40.000.003 - _40.000.003
Total Contributione and’ '
distributions 10.762.680 29.247.314 . _ - _40.000.003 - _40,000.003
Balance as at 31 December _ _
2018 14113487 __ 167.540.247 _ MSOS7 _(99.211.908) 103057683 _ - 103,057,683
Balance at 1% January 2017 14,113,487  187.840.247 315,087 ,211.408) 103057683 __ - _103.057.683
Comprehgnsive income
Profit for the year - - _ - 5046824 5.046.824 - 5.046.524

Other comprehansive income

Transter of realised losses on

disposal of available for sale - - (275.029) i - _{275.029) - {275.928)
financtal asset (Nole 29)
Revaluation of available for sale
financial assets (Note 29) = - @3gsgos . - _ 8366805 - BJ60.905
Comprehensive. gain for the ' )
yoar 2017 . - . = 8.082.876 __ _5.046.824 13.139.800 - 13.13%.800
ggam premium reduction (Note - (90285543 _ . - 993286543 ) - -
- :

Bolanco 3.2t 31 Docembor 14413497 864704 704 _ $408.033 _ 5121259 116187483 _ - 116.197.483
201 ) : ‘

(4} " Companies which do not distribute 70% of their profits after tax, as defined by the Special Contribution for the Defence

of thé Republic Law, by the end of the two years after the end of the year of assessment to which the profits refer, will be deemed
to have distributed this amount as dividend. Special contribution for defence will be payable on such deemed dividend fo the extent
that the shareholders for deemed dividend distribution purposes at the end of ihe period of two years from the end of the ysar of
assessment to which the profits refer, are Cyprus tax residents The spécial contribution for defence rate increased from 15% to
17% in respect of profits of year of assessment 2009 and to 20% in respect of profits of years of assessment 2010 and 2011 and
was reduced back to 17% in respact of profits of years of assessment 2012 onwards. The amount of this deemed dividend
distribution is reduced by any actual dividend paid out of the profits of the relevant year by the end of the period of two years from
the end of the year of assessment to which the profits-refer. This speclal contribution for defence is paid by the Company for the
account of the sharehoiders. . .

The notes on pages 22 to 89 are an integral part of these: consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 December 2017

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/ {loss) before tax
Adjustments for:

Depreciation of property, piant and equipment, and amortisation of intangibie
assels ’

{Gain) Loss from disposal of debt securities

Gain on disposal of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Impairment of property, plant & equipment and other impairments
Loss/ (gain) from disposal of financial assets at fair value through profit and

loss
Gain from disposal of investment properties
Other income )

Changes in:
Loans and cther advances to customers

Deposits from and amounts due to other banks and other customer

accounts

Decraase/ (increase) in mandatory deposits with the Central Bank of Cyprus

Other assets _
Net position in derivative financial instruments
Other liabilities

Cash generated from operations

Tex Paid _
Net cash generated from /{used In) operations

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of intangible assets

Disposal of financial assets at fair vaiue through profit or loss
Acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Acquisitions) /disposal of financia! assets available for sale
Dispasal of investment properties

Disposal /(acquisition) of debt securities

Dividends received

Net cash generated (used in)/ from from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Capital contribution from sharehoiders

Net cash generated from financing activities
Net (decrease) increase In cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at heginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

1] LT 1;:.'1 .- 5 2 J ..11-'
During the year the Group acguired property for the amount of €33,5m

Note

10

@ 0 oo

17

24,25

14
23
32
27

21
20
19
19
18

16
28

30
30

ASTROBANK GROUP

2017 2016

€ €

6.981.465 (9.115.447)
752,078 504.086
(942 853) 501.573
(1.242.371) .
217.354 756.970
898 {61.300)

. (61.261) .
(2.135.128) (511.046)
3.570.180 (7.834 284)
9.428.029 52,384.806
30979678  114.879.180
18.253.621  (20.412.350)
(1.491.222) 1.320.732
(41.115) 852.776
7213633  _ 2.195.645
_67.912.804 143.186,505
67812804  143.186.505
(556.627) (179.728)
(1.034.631) (112.814)
341.760 923.000
(15.810.262) .
(132.487.102)  17.880.246
958.760 .
44.288.759 (7.770.807)
760.711 777.709
(103541662) _11.517.605
- 40.000,003

- 40000003
(35628858)  194.704.113
404004097 209380 084
S68466239  404.004.007

(2018: €24,4m) (Note 22) after settlement agreements with

customers for loan repayments. These are not included in cash flows from investing activities as they do not constitute cash fiow

movements.

The notes on pages 22 {o 89 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ASTROBANK GROUP

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017

On 9 May 2018 the Board of Directors of the AstroBank Limited (“the Bank") authorised for issue the consolidated
financial statements for the year eénded 31 December 2017

1. GENERAL INFORMATION
Gountry of incorporation

AstroBank Limited was incorporated in Cyprus as a private limited liability company (Rég. No. HE189515), In
accordance with the provisions of the Cyprus Companies Law, Cap. 113. The registered office of the Bank is located
at 1, Spyrou Kyprianou Street, CY-1065 Nicosia.

The subsidiaries of the Group were incorporated in Cyprus in accordance with the provisions of the Cyprus
Companies Law, Cap 113 and their registered Ofﬁce is located at 1, Spyrou Kyprianou Street, CY-1065 Nicosia.

Licence to carry out banking activities

On 29t November 2007 the Bank was licensed by the Ceniral Bank of Cyprus 1o carry out banking activities in
accordance with the requirements of the Banking Law of 1897. According to the Minimum Reserve Regulations the
Bank is required to maintain a deposit in a Minimum Reserve Account with the Central Bank of Cyprus. In addition
the Bank is a member of the Depositors’ Protection Scheme, which has been founded by and operates under the
auspices of the Central Bank of Cyprus.

Change of the Parent Bank's name
On 30th March 2017, the parent Bank changed its name from Piraeus Bank {Cyprus) Limited to AstroBank Limited.
Principal activities

The principal activity of the- Bank, which is unichanged from last year, is the provision of banking and financial
services,

The princ_r‘pal activities of the property subsidiaries, which are unchanged from last year are the holding and
administration of property acquired from the Bank in debt satisfaction. A separate subsidiary is used as an insurance
broker.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements of the Group
are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented in these consolidated financial
statements unless ctherwise stated

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with [nternational Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS), as adopted by the European Union (EU), and the requirements of the Cyprus
Companies Law, Cap. 113.

As at the date of the approvatl of the consolidated financial statements, all International Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Intemational Accounting Standards Board-(IASB) and effective as of 1 January 2017 have been
adopted by the EU through the endorsement procedure established by the European Commission, with the exception
of certain provisions of IAS 38 *Financial Instruments. Recognition and Measurement” relating to portfolio hedge
accounting. C

The consolidated financial siatements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by the
revaluation at fair value of land and bufldings, investment properties, available for sale financial assets, financial
assets st fair value through profit or loss and derivative financial instruments.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conforh'nity with IFRSs requires the use of certain significant
accounting estimates and requires Management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the accounting
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ASTROBANK GROUP

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Basis of preparation {continued)

policies of the Group. The areas invelving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 3.

Basiz of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the consolidated financia! statements of the Group as at and for the
year ended 31 December 2017. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared as of the same reperting

date as that of the Bank, using consistent accounting policies.

over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if, and only if, the Group has:

* Power over an investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee),

¢ Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee.

* The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results in contrel. To Support this presumption and
when the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts

Assets, liabilities, income and éxpenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date of acquisition or up to the date of disposal, respectively. Profit or loss
and each component of OCI are atiributed to the equity holders of the parent of the Group and o the non-controliing
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. Non-controlling interests
represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets not held by the Group, directly or indirectly. The non-controlling
interests are presented separately in the consolidated income statement and within equity from the Company owners’

equity.
All intra-group balances and transactions and unrealised gainsflosses on transactions between Group companies
are eliminated on consolidation,

A change in the ownership interest and non-controlling interests of a subsidiary, without loss of controi, is accounted
for as a transaction between the owners, which affects equity. As a result, no goodwill arises hor any gainfloss is
recognised in the consolidated income statement from such transactions, The foreign exchange differences which
relate to the share of non-controlling interests being sold/acquired are reclassified between the foreign currency

reserve and non-controliing interests.

When the Group ceases o have control or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to
its fair value at the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an
associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income ars reclassified to

profit or loss,

The details of the subsidiaries whose resuits are consolidated in these consoclidated financial statements ars
disciosed in Note 33.
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ASTROBANK GROUP

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017

2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
Basis of preparation (cont_inued)
Changes in accounting estimates

During the year ended 31 December 2017 various changes have occurred with regards fo the assumptions adopted
for the calculation of provisions for loans and advances which can be regarded as a change in accounting estimates.
The change in accounting estimates has an effect in the current period and is expected to have an effect in future
periods. The Management considered it impractical to calculate the effect of such changes in the consolidated
financial statements.

Changes In accounting policles and disclosures

Under IFRS §; applicable from 1 January 2018 onwards, the presentation of gross foans will need to change to a
contractual basis and suspended interest will henceforth be included in capital provisions. In view of this change, the:
Management of the Bank has decided to follow this presentation for financial reporting purposes as of 31 December
2017. The comparative figures of gross loans have also been adjusted.

Such adjustment did not have an irﬁpact on the profit for the year or equity of the Group for the periods presented or
for prior periods. :

2017 2047 2016 2016
- After chango In -Prior to changeIn | - After change in -Prior to change
Loans and advances accounting policy ) accounting policy | accounting policy in accounting
: . . . ol
- Gross loans and advances 723.612.814 658.004.361 766,868,638 709.249.323 [
Provigions for the impainment of ioans 210093289 | - . 144.484.836 | 210,427 135 “162.807.820
and advances . . N
‘Net loans and advances 513.518.5256 ' 513.619.525 556.441.6503 556.441.503
Loans and advances to individuals - "206.779.265 179.175.165 Z10.546.520 186 148.073 |
Loans and advances 1o large 121.019.486 120.830.680 94.478.508 04,478.508
corporate entities and craanisations ) ) :
Loans and advances to small and 395.8514.063 357.808.618 461.843.610 .. 428.622.742
medium enterprises . :
Loans and advances neither past due 276.796.344 276.754.965 270.589.581 270.689.581
nor impalred | _ ) ) ' . )
Loans and advances past due but not | - 149.608.888 149,903,846 152.040 151 152.033.280
) ) impaired . i : )
inpaired Ioans and advances ) "296.907.582 231,345.550 | 344.238.906 | 286.626.453
1 5ans and advances 90 days past — 280.962.187 ) 215.761.216 516,402,607 259.162.960
. due. . . .
Non-performing exposures — 406431430 340.822.875 247 478.546 3B9.559.230
90+ Days Past Due Ralio T a8E% | 28% T a,3% %%
90+ Days Pasl Dus Provision | 74,8% 67.0% | 86.5% | 50,0%
: e Ratio ) :
NPE Ratlo ' 56,2% ) 51,8% 58.4% | . 55,0%
NPE Provision Goverage Ratio ' G N N 0a% | 5% — %02%

Loans and advances to customers neither past due nor impaired:

i To2017 2017 2018 |- 2016
Credit rating category { - Aftar change in | -Prior 1o change in - After change in -Prior to change in
) accounting policy accounting policy accounting policy accounting policy
Low risk 243400642 | 243 409.644 228.579.957 N 228,570,957
Medium risk 33386702 33.345.321 | 42.000.624 42.000.624
Toll | 216756344 | . ZIG.T6A96E TOGRNEST | 270.509.581
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
'Baslis of preparation {(continued)
Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)

Total past due but not impaired loans and advances fo customers:

ASTROBANK GROUP

‘ 2017 2017 2016 2016
90 Days past due analysis - After change in | -Priorto change In - After change In -Prior to change in
accounting pol) accountin i accounting polic accounting polic
1-30 days pasi due 114,038.488 114.038.335 122,336.204 122.336.203
31-60 days past due 15.445.633 15.445.633 0.524.810 9.524.810
61-80 days past due 3.227.700 |- 3.227.700 5215972 §.215.972
More than 90 days past due 17.197.067 17.182.178 14.963.165 14.956,304
Total past due but not impaired icans 149.905.883 149.502.540 152,040,781 152,033.280
and advances
Impaired loans and advances to customers:
‘ 2017 2017 ' 2016 2018
impaired loans and advances - Atter change In | -Prior o change In - After change.in -Prior to change In
. accountin i accounting poit accounting policy accounting poll
Indlviduals 100.148.505 72.549.447 111.306.203 86.908.695
Large eniilics & organsations 15.867 686 16.779.080 ) .
Small and medium enferprises 180.891.190 143.017.023 232.932.703 169.717.758.
Total 296.807.682 2231.345.550 344.238.906 286.526.453 |

Golng Concern

Management has made an assessment of the Group’s ability to continue as a going concem.

The conditions that existed during 2017 and the developments up to the date of approval of these Consolidated

Financial Statements that have
operating environment in Cyprus and of the Group.

Management, taking into consideration the factors described below, is satisfied
continue in business for the foreseeable future and, therefore, the going concer

been considered in the going concemn assessment include, amongst others, the

that the Group has the resources to
N principle is approprigte:

* On 31 December 2017 the Bank maintained healthy liquidity levels, with a liquidity coverage ratio of 323%;

* On 31 December 2017 the Bank’s euro liquidity ratio was 36,5%

_and the forej
99,3%, well above the Central Bank of Cyprus regulatory minima being 18% and

The Increasing level of Group customer deposits {increase of €30,7m during 201 7
On 31 December 2017 the Bank maintained a capital adequacy ratio at 17,0%:;

*
* The IFRS 8 impact on a transitional and on a fully phased-in basis,
expected to be manageable and within the Group's capital plan;

gn currency liquidity ratio was
50% respectively,

after the period of transition is complete, is

* The significant reduction in Non-Performing exposures (NPEs), which have decreased by 8,2% during 2017 and

totalled €406.431.430 at 31
47,0% at 31 December 2018;

December 2017 and the increase of provisions coverage fo 51,7% compared io

+ The significant reduction of loans in arrears for more than 90 days (90+ DPD) by 11,2% during 2017 to
€280.962.187 at 31 December 2017 and the Increase of provisions covérage to 74,8% compared to 66,5% at 31

December 2016;

The regular monitoring of the performance of the Group against business
The diversity as well as the improving credit rating of the liquid assets hel
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ASTROBANK GROUP

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basls of preparation (continued)
Going concern (continued)

« The Cyprus government rating has been repeatedly upgraded following the consistent outperformance in public
finances and the progress. achieved in the banking sector. Most recently in March 2018, S&P Global Ratings
affirmed its long-term sovereign rating at BB+, only one notch beiow investment grade, and maintained its outlook
to positive In April 2018, Fitch Ratings upgraded its Long-Term Issuer Default ratings to BB+ from BB with positive
outiook. In July 2017, Moody's Investors Service upgraded the long term issuer rating of the Cyprus sovereign to
Ba3 from B1 to reflect Cyprus’ economic recovery and maintained its outiook to positive. Moody's Investors
Service reiterated its credit rating and positive outlook on the Cyprus sovereign in & February 2018 update:

The Group’s Management belfieves that the Group is taking all necessary measures to maintain its viability and the
development of its business in the current economic environment, therefore these financial statements have been
prepared on the basis of going concem.

Adoption of new and revised IFRSs

A number of new standards are effective for annual periods beginning after 1 Jahuary 2017 and earlier application
is permitted; however the Group has not early adopted the new standards in preparing these consolidated financial
statements. :

As at the date of approval of these financial statements, the following finantial reporting standards have been issued
by the International Accounting Standards Boards but have not yet been effective:

(i} Adopted by the European Union

Amendments .
. Disclosure initiative (Amendments to IAS 7) (effective for the periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017)
. Recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised Losses (Amendments to IAS 12) (effective for the periods

beginning on or after 1 January 2017) _
. Annual improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle - various standards (Amendments to IFRS 12) (effective
for the periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017)

)  Not adopted by the European Unlon
New standards

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018)
IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers including amendments to IFRS 15 (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018) _ '

. IFRS 18, Leases (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019)

. Amendments to IAS 40 - Transfers of investment property (effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018)

. Annual improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle — various standards {(Amendments to IFRS 1 and IAS 28)
{effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018) :

] IFRIC 22 foreign currency transactions and advance consideration (effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018) '

. IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 20189) ; ,

. Prepayment features with negative compensation — amendments to IFRS 9 (effective for annual periods

beginning on or after 1 January 2019)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
Adoption of new and revised IFRSs (continued)
{il) Not adopted by the European Unfon (continued)

New standards (continued) .

The Board of Directors expects that the adoption of these amendments and new standards of financia) reporting will
not have significant effect on the financial statements of the Group, except of the following:

IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

{FRS 15 was issued in May 2014 and establishes a five-step mode! that will apply to revenue earned from a contract
with a customer (with limited exceptions), regardless of the type of revenue transaction or the industry. The
standard'’s requirements will also apply to the recognition and measurement of gains and losses on the sale of some
non-financial assets that are not an output of the entity’s ordinary activities (e.g., sales of property, plant and

IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers (clarifications)

The objective of the clarifications is to clarify the IASB's intentions when developing the requirements in IFRS 15
Revenue from contracts with customers, particularly the accounting of identifying performance obligations.amending
the wording of the separately identifiable principle, of principai versus agent considerations including the assessment
of whether an entity Is a principal or an agent as well as applications of control principle and of licensing providing
additional guidance for accounting of intellectual property and royalties. The clarifications aiso provide additional

IFRS 9 Financial instruments

IFRS 8 Financial instruments (IFRS 9} replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and
introduces new requirements for classification and measurement, impairment, and hedge accounting. IFRS 9 is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with early adoption permitted. The Group will apply

IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018,
In October 2017, the IASB issued Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (Amendments to IFRS 8). The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, with early adoption permifted.

Impact of IFRS 8

The Group's IFRS 9 preliminary impact on transition, is primarily driven by credit impaiment provisions. The new
accounting processes, internal controls, governance framework, judgements and estimation technigues will continue
to be refined and undergo validation.

The actual impact of adopting IFRS 8 on 1 January may change until the Group finalises the calibration and testing
of the statistical models used to caiculate the expected cradit losses.

The impact on provisions of loans and advances to customers measured at amortised cost is approximately €8,0
million or an increase of 2,9% on provisions calculated in accordance with IAS 39 with a corresponding reduction in

shareholders' equity.

The expected credit loss recognised on the Bank's bond portfelio is estimated to be €0,7 million of which the reduction
on shareholders’ equity is €0,2 mifiion.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017

‘2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (co_ntlnued)
IFRS 9 Financial instruments (continued)

Transition

The classification, measurement and impairment requirements are applied retrospectively by adjusting the balance
sheet at the date of initial application, and as permitted by IFRS 8 the Group will not restate comparative information
for prior periods. The impact on the implementation date, 1 January 2018, is therefore recognised through equity
rather than the consolidated income statement. - '

Impact on cépltal_ planning

The Group has elected to apply the EU transitional arrangements for regulatory capital purposes (EU Regulation
2017/2395) where the impact on the impairment amount from the initial application of IFRS @ on the capital ratios
will be phased-in gradually. From the date of initial application of IFRS ¢ and for five years the amount of the
ditference in provisions that will result from the transition to the new IFRS 9 in relation to the provisions that have
been recognised at 31 December 2017 in accordance with IAS 39 will be added to the capital ratios The amount
that will be added each year will decrease based on a weighting factor until the impact of IFRS 9 is fully absorbed at
the end of the five-years ’

Classification and measurement

[FRS 9 contains & new classification and measurement approach for financial assets that reflects the business model
in which assets are managed and théir cash flow characteristics. IFRS 9 includes three principal classification
categories for financial assets: measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
and fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). It eliminates the existing IAS 30 categories of held to maturity, loans
and receivables and available for sale.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the'following conditions and is not designated as
“at and fair value through profit or loss:

« it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows, and
« its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest {(SPP)) on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset is measured at FVOCI only if it meets both the following conditions and is not designated as at fair
value through profit or loss.

« it is held within 2 business modet whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets; and

= its contractual terms rise on specified dates fo cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding. '

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may Irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value through OCI. Thig election is made on an investment by investrnent basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at
FVTPL. In addition, on initial recognition the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets

the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOC! as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
redices an accounting mismaich that would otherwise arise. -

A _ﬂn_éncial asset is classified into one of these categbn‘es on initial recognition.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
IFRS 9 Financial instruments (continued)

Classification and measurement {continued)

Business modef assessment

The objective of the Group's business model is not based on Management's intentions with respect to an individual
instrument, but rather is determined at a higher leve! of aggregation. The assessment needs to reflect the way that
a Group manages its business. A single reporting entity may have more than one business model for managing its

financial instruments.

The Grou;i wili make as assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a
portfolic level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to
Management. The information that will be considered includes:

* - the stated policies and objectives for the portfollo and the operation of those policies In practice; including
whether Management’s strategy focuses on eaming contractual interest révenue, maintaining particular
interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of the liabilities that are
funding those assets or realising cash flows through sales of assels;

* how the performance of the portioiio is evaluated and reported to the Group’s Management:
the risks that affect the performance of the business model ( and the financlai assets held within that business

model) and how those risks are managed;
* thefrequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and expectations about

future sales activity. However, information about sales acfivity is not considered in is_plation. but as part of

Financial assets thet are held for trading are those that are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis will be measured at FVTPL because they are neither held to collect contractual cash flows not held both

fo collect contractual cash flows and to sell financial assets.
Assessment whether contractual cash fiows are solely payments of principel and interest

For the purpose of this assessment, “principal” is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognhition,
“Interest” is defined as consideration for the time value of money, for the credit risk associated with the principal
amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for the other basic lending risks and costs (j.e. liquidity risk

and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Group will consider
the contractual terms of the instrument. This will include assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual

contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash fiows;

»

s leverage features;

® prepayment and extension terms; :

* terms that limit the Group’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse asset

arrangements); and
« features that modify consideration of the time value of money

29



ASTROBANK GROUP

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

IFRS 9 Financial instruments (continued)

Classification and measurement (continued)

The standard will affect the classification and measurement of financial assets held as at 1 January 2018 as follows-

» Trading assets and derivative assets, which are classified as held for trading and measured at FVTPL under
IAS 39, will also be measured at FVTPL under IFRS 9

+ Held to maturity investment securities measured at amortised cost under IAS 39 will in general also be
neasured &t amortised cost under IFRS9

s Debt investment securities that are classified as available for sale under 1AS 38 may, under IFRS 9, be
measured at amortised cost, FVOCI or FVTPL depending on the particular circumstances .

« Loans and advances to customers and investment securities that are designated as at FVTPL under 1AS 39
will in general continue to be measured at FVTPL under IFRS 8

. The majority of the equity investment securities that are classified as available for sale under IAS 39 will be
measured at FVTPL under IFRS 8 However, some of these equity investment securities are heid for iong
term strategic purposes and will be designated as at FVOCI on 1 January 2018

Impairment ~financial assets, loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts

IFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss® model in IAS 39 with a forward fooking “expected credit loss model”. This will
require considerable judgement over how changes in economic factors affect expected credit losses (ECLs), which
will be determined on @ probability- weighted basis

The new impairment model applies to the following financiat instruments that are not measured at FVTPL:

financial assets that are debt instruments;
lease receivables;

financial guarantee contracts issued; and
loan comritments issued.

Under IFRS 9 no Impairment loss is recognised on equity investments.

IFRS 9 requires a loss allowance to be recognised at an amount equal to either 12- month ECLs or lifelime ECLs.
Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument,
whereas 12- month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date.

Financial assets which ha\i.e not had a significant increase in credit risk gince initial récognition and where 12- month
ECL is recognised are considered to be Stage 1.

Flhancial assets that are considered to have expériencad a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition
and where lifetime losses are recognised are considered to be Stage 2.

Financial assets for which there is objective evidence of impairment are considered to be in default or credit impaired
and are considered to be Stage 2 '

€
Stage 1 ' ' 2492
Slage 2 108,9
Stage 3 406,9
Totat , 766,0
On balance sheot ‘ . 723,6
Off balance sheot 424
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2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contlnued)
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments {continued)

Impairment -financial assets, loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts (continued)

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, except for the following, for which they
are measured as 12-month ECL:

* debt investment securities that are determined to have low credt risk at the reporting date. The Group
considers a debt security to have a low credit risk when its credit risk rating is equivalent to the globally -
understood definition of “investment grade”; and -

¢ other financial instruments (other than lease receivables) on which credit risk has not increased significantly
since their Initial recognition

Loss allowances for isase receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.

The impairment requirements of IFRS 9 are complex and require management Judgements, estimates and

assumptions, particularly in the following areas, which are discussed in detail below:

* assessing whether the credit risk of an instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition; and

* Incorporating forward looking information into the measurement of ECLs.

» financial assets that are not credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the present value of all cash shortfallg
(i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract and the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive);

Measurement of ECLs
ECLs are a probability-weightad estimate of credit losses. THey are measured as follows:

» financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the difference between the gross carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash fiows;

e undrawn loan commitments: as the present value of the difference between the contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group if the commitment is drawn down and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive;

* fihnanclal guarantee contracts: the expected payments to reimburse the holder less any amounts that the

Defiition of defauit _
Exposures that meet the non-performing exposure (NPE) definition as per EBA standards are considered to bein

default and hence credit-impaired and are considered to be in Stage 3 and have ECL calculated on a lifetime basis.

According fo the European Banking Authority (EBA) standards and European Central Bank {ECB) Guidance to
Banks on NPE (which was published in March 2017), NPEs are defined as those exposures that satisfy one of the

following conditrons:

* The borrower I assessed ag unlikely to pay its credit obligations in full without the realisation of the collaterai,
regardiess of the existence of any past due amount or of the number of days past due:

= Defauited or impaired exposures as per the approach provided in the Capital Requirement Regulation
(CRR), which would aiso trigger a default under specific credit adjustment, distress restructuring and obligor
bankruptcy:;
Exposures which are more than 90 days past due;
Performing forborne exposures under probation for which additional forbearance measures are extended,

]
*  Performing forbormne expuosures under probation that present more than 30 days past due within the probation
period.
When the problematic exposures of a customer that fulfi} the NPE criteria set out above are greater than 20% of the

gross carrying amount of all on balance sheet exposures of that customer, then the total customer exposure Is
classified as non-performing; otherwise only the problematic part of the exposure is classified as non-performing.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
IFRS 8 Financial instruments {continued)
Impaimment —financial assets, loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts {continued)

Exposures cease to be considered as NPEs and in such case are transferred out of Stage 3, only when all of the
following condifions are met:

The extension of forbearance measures does not lead to the recognition of impairment or default.
One year has passed since the forbearance measures were extended.
« Following the forbearance measures and according to the post-forbearance conditions, there is no past due
~ amount or concerns regarding the full repayment of the exposure .-
+  No unlikely-to-pay criteria exist for the debtor. '
« The debtor has made post-forbearance payments of a not-insignificant amount of capital (different capital
thresholds exist according fo the facility type).

“Significant increase in crédit risk

Under IFRS 9, when determining whether the credit risk (i.e. risk-of default) on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group will consider reasonable and supportable information that is relevant
and availabie without undue cost or effort, including both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based
on the Group’s historical experience, expert credit assessment and forward-looking information.

IFRS 9 requires that, in the event of a significant increase in credit risk, since nitial recognition, the calculation basis
of the loss allowance would change from 12 month ECLs to lifetime ECLs

Determining whether credit tisk has increased significantly

Assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly since intial recognition of a financial instrument requires
Identifying the date of initial recognition of the instrument.

“The Group has established a framework that incorporates both quantitative and qualitative information to determine
whether the credit risk on a particular financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. The
criteria for determining whether credit risk has increased significantly will vary by portfolio and will include a backstop
based on delinquency and forbearance measures ‘

In tertain instances, using its expert credit judgement and, where possible, relevant historical experience, the Group
may determine that an exposure has undergone a significant increase in credit nsk i particular qualitative factors
indicate so and those indicators may not be fully captured by its quantitative analysis on a timely basis. As a backstop,
and as required by IFRS 8, the Group will presumptively consider that a significant increase in credit nsk occurs no
later than when an asset is more than 30 days past due. The Group will determine days past due by counting the
number of days since the earliest elapsed due date in respect of which full payment has not been received.

The Group will monitor the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify significant increases in credit risk by regular
reviews to confirm that: '

the criteria are capable of identifying significant increases in credit risk before an exposure is in default,

the criteria do not align with the paint in time when an asset becomes 30 days past due;

the average time between the identification of a significant increase in credit risk and default appears
reasonable; - _ ,

exposures are not generally transferred directly from 12-month ECL measurement to credit-impaired; and
there is no unwarranted volatiiity in loss allowance from transfers between 12-month ECL and lifetime ECL
measurements. : '

Generating the term structure of PD

The Group will employ. statistical models to analyse the data collected and generate estimates of the remaining
iifetime PD of exposures and how these are expected to change as a resuilt of the passage of time.

This analysis will include the identification and calibratioh of relationships between changes in default r_'ateé and
changes in key macro-economic factors, as well as in-depth analysis of the impact of certain other factors (e.g.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

IFRS 9 Financial instruments {continued)

Impairment financial assets, loan commitments and financlal guarantee contracts (continued)

Generating the term structure of PD {confinued)

forbearance experience) on the risk of default. For most exposures, key macro-econemic indicators are likely to
include GDP growth, housing price indexation and unemployment.

Inputs into measurement of ECLs
The key inputs into the measurement of ECLs are likely to be the term structures of the following variables:

* PD;
* loss given default (LGD); and
= exposure at default (EAD).

These parameters will be derived from internally developed statistical models and other historical data. They will be
adjusted to reflect forward-looking information as described below.

EAD represents the expected exposure in the event of a default. EAD methodology is differentiated in the following
categorles. revolving and hon-revolving exposures. In case of revolving exposures all future EAD changes are
recognised by a credit conversion facior parameter. For non-revolving exposures the term s based an the contractual
term of the exposure and both on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet exposures are amortised in accordance with
the principal contractual payment schedule of each exposure. In regards to the credit-impaired exposures, the EAD
is equal fo the on balance sheet amount as at the reporting date.

LGD i8 an estimate of the loss from a transaction given that a default occurs. Lifetime LGDs are defined as
collection of LGD estimates applicable to different future periods.

The structure of the LGD model considers the following:

= Curing: the probability of cure model was derived based on historical observations

* Non-curing is further broken down into:
L. Collateral realisation: the collateralised part of EAD of a defaulted account could be recovered

through collatersl realisation The process was considered to be either voluntary (amicable sale,
debt for asset swap) or forced sale or through foreciosure and receivership. :
Il.  Cash recavery: calculated based on observed cash flows,

PD is calculated based on statistical rating models calculated per segment level and taking into consideration each
individual’s exposure rating and forward looking information based on macroeconamic inputs,

ECL is discounted at the effective interest rate at initial recognition or an approximation thereof.

Forward-looking information

Under IFRS 9, the Group will incorporate forward-looking information into both its assessment of whether the credit
risk of an instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition and its measurement of ECLs. The Group
will formulate a ‘base case’ view of the future direction of relevant economic variables and a representative range of
other possible forecast scenarios based on projections by econiomic experts and consideration of variety of external
actual and forecast information. This process will involve developing two or more additional economic scenarios and

considering the relative probabilities of each outcome.

The base case will represent a most-likely outcome and be aligned with information used by the Group for other
purposes, such as strategic planning and budgeting. The other scenarios will represent more optimistic and more

pessimistic outcomes.
The Group has identified and documented key drivers of credit risk and credit losses for each portfolio of financial
instruments and, using an analysis of historical data, has estimated relationships between macro-economic variables
and credit risk and credit losses. These key drivers inciude unemployment rates, housing price indices and GDP
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

IFRS 9 Financlal instruments (continued)
Jii. impairment —financial assets, loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts (continued)
FonVard'-loaking information (continued)

forecasts. Predicted relationships between the key indicators and default and loss rates on various portfolics of
financial assets have been developed based on analysing historical data over the past 6 years.

Classification — Financial liabilities
IFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements in IAS 38 for the classification of financial ligbilitles.

However under IAS 39 all fair value changes of financial liabilities designated as at FVTPL are recognised in profit
or loss, whereas under IFRS 8 these fair value changes will generally be presented as follows:

» the amount of the change in the fair value that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of the liability will
be presented in OCI; and
.+ the remaining amount of the change in the fair value will be presented in profit or loss.

Derecognition and contract modification

The derecognition requirements of IAS 39 were carried forward into the IFRS 9, The contractual terms of a loan may
be modified following various reasons, either due to commercial renegotiations or due to distressed restructurings
with 2 view to maximise recovery.

in the event that the terms and conditions of a financial asset are renegotiated or otherwise modified, the Group
considers whether the modification resuits in derecognition of the. existing financial asset and the recognition of a
new financial asset. Modifications to, and exchanges of, financial liabilities are treated as extmgunshments and
derscognised, when the revised terms-are substantially different to the originat term

A derecognition of a financial asset and a recognition of a new financial asset would occur where there has been a
substantiat modification on the revised terms to the original cash flows.

Judgement is required fo assess whether a change in the contractual terms is substantial enough to lead fo
derecognition. The Group considers a series of factors of both qualitative and guantitative nature when making such
judgements on a modification in the contractual cash flows, When a substantial modification in the original financial
- asset is deemed to exist, then the original financial asset is derecognised and a new financial asset is recognised,

In the case of a new loan ‘an assessment is performed on whether it should be classified as Stage 1 or
Purchased/originated credit impaired (POCI).

Write off
The Group reduces the gross carrying amount of a financial asset when there is no reasenable expectation of
recovering it In such case, financial assets are written off either partially or in full.

Write off refers to both contractual and non-contractual write offs.

Interest revenue recegnition

For loans considered to be Stage 1 and 2 and are not POCI, interest revenue is caloulated on the gross carrying
amount using the Original Effective Iinterest Rate (OEIR).

When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired and is, thereforé, regarded as Stage 3, interest income is calculated

by applying the effective interest rate to the net amortised cost of the financial asset. If the financial asset cures and
is no longer credit-impaired, the Group reverts to calculating interest income on the gross carrying amount.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
Foreign currency translation

a.  Functional and presentation currenc
The consolidated financial statements of the Group are presented in Euro (functional and presentation
currency), which is the currency of the Primary economic environment in which the Group operates.

b.  Transactions and bajances
y using the exchange rates prevailing

Foreign currency transactions are transiated into the functional currenc

at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the transiation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and lizbilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated income statement {in other income).

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in foreign currency classified as avaflable for
sale are analysed between translation differences resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the security,
and other changes in the carmying amount. Translation differences related to changes in the amortised cost
are recognised in consolidated profit or loss {in other income), and other changes in the carrying amount
except Impairments are recognised in consolidated other comprehensive income.

Transaction differences on nor-monetary financial investments, such as equities classified as available for
sale financial assets are included in consolidated other comprehensive income.

Turnover
Group’s turnover comprises of income generated from banking activities such as interest income and other income

such as gain on disposal of investment properties.

interest income and expense
Interest income and expense are recognised in the consolidated income statement for all interest beering assets

and liabilities on an accrual basis using the effective interest method. Interest income includes interest earned on
loans and advances, available-for-saie financial assets, financial assets at farr value through profit or loss as well as
the amortisation of discount and premium on govemment bonds and treasury bills and other financia instruments.

income or expenses on transactions related to the creation of financial instruments, measured at amortised cost,
such as loans, are deferred and amortised over their useful lives based on the effective interest rate. These income
and expenses are included in interest income in the consolidated income statement. Once a financial asset has been
written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is recognised using the original effective interest rate,

Fee and commission income and expense

Fees and commission income and expense are generally recognised in the year when the service hag been provided
‘o the clients or to the Group respectively. Fee and commission income and axpense relate to loans and advances,

credit cards, letters of guarantee documentary, credits and transfers of money and other barking services as well

as through insurance intermediation activities.

Dividend income _
Dividend income is recognised in the consolidated income statemient when the Group's right to receive payment is

established i.e. upon approval by the general meeting of the shareholders.

Rental income
Rental income from investment properties is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease and

is recognised in the consolidated income statement in 'Other income’,

Gains from the disposal of investment property
Net gaine on disposal of investment property are recognised in the consolidated income statement when the buyer

accepts ownership of the property and the transfer of risks and rewards to the buyer is completed.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conﬂnﬂed)

.Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in consolidated other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in consolidated other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively. " '

The current income tax is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date in the country in which the Group operates and generates taxabie income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken In tax retumns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject.to
interpretation. If applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation, the Group establishes provision where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be pald to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differerices arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements However, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of fransaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance

sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax assetis realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settied.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxabie profits will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment property that is measured at fair value is determined assuming the -
property will be recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities retate to income taxes
levied by the same taxafion authority on the Group where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis,

Special Levy -

According to the “Special Levy on Credit Institutions Law of 2011 to 2015", special levy, is imposed on credit
institutions on a quarterly basis, at the rate of 0,0375% on 31 December, 31 March, 30 June and 30 September on
qualifying deposits held by each credit institution at the beginning of the quarterly period. -

Business combinations _ _
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting. The cost of an acquisition is-
measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred, measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount
of any non-controlling interests in the aequiree. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is
the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liabfiity resufting
from a contingent consideration amangement Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. For each
business combination the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value
or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group's share of the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired, is recognised as goodwill on the consolidated
balance sheet. Where the Group's share of the fair values of the identifisble net assets are greater than the cost of
acquisition {j.e. negative goodwill}, the difference is recognised directly in the consolidated income statement in the
year of acquisition. Acquisition related costs are expensed as incurred and included in other operating expenses.

Where settiement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted to
their present value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate,
being the rate at which a simiiar borrowing could be obtained from an independent financier under comparable terms
and conditions

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.

Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is
recognised in accordance with 1AS 38 either in profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved)

Business combinations (continued) .
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured, and its subsequent settiement is accounted.

for within equity.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held equity interest is remeasured at fair value and
any resulting gain or loss is recognised in the consolidated income statement. When the Group acquires a business,
it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classiication and designation in accordance
with contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date,

Derivative Financial Instruments _
The derivative financial instruments that the Group trades in are mainly forward confracts and foreign currency

swaps. Derivative financial products are initially measured at fair value at the date of recording the contract and then
are measured daily at fair value. Fair value is determined using the market vaiuves or, when market values are not
readily available, using valuation models. Changes in the fair value of the derivatives which are designated for trade
are presented in other income. When the fair value is positive, derivatives constitute part of the assets and when is

negative constitute part of the liabliities.

Financlal assets
The Group initially recognises financial assets on the date at which they are originated.

The Group classifies its financial assets into the foliowing categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables and available for sale financial assets. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the classification of financial assets at initiat

recognition.
A.  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets that have: been acquired for profit through short-term
fluctustions in prices, and those designated at fair value through profit or loss at inception.

Financial assels or financial liabiifties held for trading

Financial assets or financial liabilities held for trading represent assets and liabilities acquired or incurred principally
for the purpose of selling or repurchasing them in the near term and are recognised In the consolidated statement of
financial position at fair value, Changes in the fair value are recognised in ‘Net gains from other financial instruments
at FVTPL' in the consolidated income statement. Interest income is included in the Comresponding capfions in the

consolidated income statement according to the terms of the relevant contract.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value and are then presented at fair
value. Initial transaction costs are debited in the consolidated income statement, ‘

Financial assets designated as at fair value through profit or foss ,
Financial assets designated as at fair value through profit or loss at inception are those that are managed and their
performance is evaluated on a fair valye basis, in accordan_oe with the Group's documented risk management or

Realised gainsflosses from the sale of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, as well as unrealised gains
and losses from their measurement at fair value, are included in “other income™.

Purchases and sales of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised on trade date which is the
date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. The Group derecognises the financial assets from
the consolidated financial statements when it loses control on the rights of these investments. The control of the
rights is lost when the investment is sold expired or written off or all the related cash flows from the investments
have been transferred to a thir party. Interest on the bonds held in the trading portfolio is included in “interest

income”. ‘

B.  Avallable for sale financial assets .
Available for sale invesiments are-non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available for sale or are not

classified under another category of financial assets, Available for sale investments may be held for an undetermined
pericd of time or may be sold in response to changes in market risks or liquidity requirements.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
Financlal assets (continued)

B. Avallable for sale financial assets{continued)

Available for sale financial assets are initially recognised at fair value (Including tfransaction cests) and are
subsequently measured at fair value based on the current prices, or when those are not readily available the value
as per the valuation medels as per the provisions of JAS 39, They are included in non-current assets, unless
Management intends to dispose of the investments within twelve months from the balance sheet date.

Unrealised gains or losses from the variation in fair value of available for sale financial assets are included in a
special reserve in equity. On the sale of available for sale financial assets the relevant eccumulated gains/iosses are
transferred from the reserve to the consclidated income statement. Available for sale financial assets are
derecognised when the cash flows from the investments are no fonger collectable or the Group has transferred a
substantial part of the risk and rewards to third parties.

In the case of equity titles classified as available for sale, a significant or a prolonged reduction in the fair value of
the share less than its cost, constitutes objective evidence that its value has been impaired. If there is such objective
evidence for financial assets available for sale, the accumulated loss which is determined as the difference between
the cost of purchase and the current fair value, less the impairment of the asset previously recognised, is transferred
in equity and recognised in the consolidated income statement. If, at a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt
title classified as available for sale, increase and the increase can objectively be associated with a fact that happened
after the recognition of the impairment loss in the consolidated income statement, the impairment loss is reversed
through the consolidated income statement.

Interest and dividends on financial assets held in this portfolio are recognised in the respective categories in the
consolidated income statement.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated In foreign currency and ciassified as available for sale
are analysed between exchange differences resulting from changes in.amortised cost and other changes in the
carrying amount of the security. The exchange differences on monetary securities are recognised in the consolidated
income statement, whereas exchange differences in non-monetary securities in the consolidated other
comprehensive income. Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities classified as available
for sale are recognised in consolidated other comprehensive income.

C. '~ Loans and other recelvables o

Loans and other receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market and for which there is no intention of trading the receivable. They are included in current
assets, except for maturities greater than twelve months afier the balance sheet date. These are classified as non-
current assets. The Group's loans and receivables comprise trade and other receivables, other assets, receivables .
from debt securities and cash and cash equivalenis inthe statement of financial position.

Loans and advances granted by the Bank are initially recognised at fair value, plus any Incremental fransaction
costs, and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effactive interest method. i there is objective
evidence that the Bank wiil not be able to collect all or part of the amount due, according to the ofiginal term of the
loan, & pravision for impairment is established. The amount of the accumulated provision is the difference between
the carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted &t the original effective interest
rate of the loan.

In the case of a provision baing made for the impairment of a loan, the income from interest continues to be
recognised based on the original effective interest rate of the loan, on the amount for which no prevision has been
made (recoverable amount), as per the guidance of iAS 39.

If in.a future period the amount of the provision is reduced and the reduction is due to objective events that took
place after the prowision was recognised, for example an improvement.in the credit condition of a debtor, then the
provision is reduced and the difference is recognised in the consolidated income statement

A receivable is subject to impairment when its carrying amount is greater than the expected recoverable amount
The term “receivable” includes loans and advances, letters of guarantee and letters of credit.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Financial agsets {continued)

C. Loans and other receivables {continued) _
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a receivabie or group of
receivables may have been impaired. If such evidence exists, the recoverable amount of the receivable or group of
receivables is estimated and a provision for impairment is recognised. The amount of the provision is recognised in

the consolidated income statement,

The Group has defined policies and procedures for loan impairment and provisioning which are in line with
Impairment and Provisioning Procedures Directives issued by Central Bank of Cyprus, which were in effect as at 31

December 2017,

The Group initially assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists on an individual basis for advances
that the Group considers significant. Advances that have been assessed on an individua] debtor level and for which
no cbjective evidence of impairment exists, significant or otherwise, are classified in groups with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively agsessed for logses incurred but not yet reported,

The Group assesses on an individual basis all the Joans handled by the Recoveries Department and the Arrears
Management Unit. it aiso examines all significant corporate loans as well as all the advances of any borrower with
aggregate outstanding balance greater than the defined limit of significance, provided that there are indications of
impairment. The significance threshold is set bearing in mind the need to accurately calculate loan provisions.

Objective evidence that a receivable group of receivables has been impaired or it is not fecoverable includes the
following:

I Significant financial difficulties faced by the debtor. .
Il. A breach of the terms of the loan contract (i.e. default or delinquency in interest or principal payments).
lil.  The Group, for financial or legal reasons relating to the debtor's financial difficulties, granting the debior a

IV.  ltis probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial feorganisation.

V.  Observable data indicating that, from the date of initial recognition of those loans, there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from group of loans, although the. decrease cannot yet be
identified by examining each individual loan in the group separately, including:

* Adverse changes in the payment status on the balance. of the group of ioans (e.g. increase in the
humber of past due payments due to sector problems), or

¢ Economic conditions on a national or local scale that correlate with delays in the payments of loans
within the group of loans (e.g. increase in the unemployment rate within a geographical area, decrease
in the value of property placed as collateral in the same geographical area, or unfavourable changes in
the operating conditions of a sector, which affect the debtors included in a specific group). S

For the purposes of an impairment assessment on a collective basis, advances are grouped based on their credit
risk characteristics. The Bank adopts a standardised approach for collective impalrment by using probabilities of
default based on historical data and past experience. This methodol_ogy is subject to_upo‘eﬂalnty du_e to the subjective

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related provision for impairment, ag long as such a provision

exists. Such loans are written off after all the necessary procedures have been completed and the amount of the
loss has been determined.

Loans and other receivables are written off when either the ability to receive cash flows has ceased or the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards to third parties,
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
C.  Loans and other receivables (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Management of the Bank has decided fo proceed with a change in
the Bank's accounting policy with respect to the presentation of interest suspended on credit impaired loans. As at
31 December 2017 the gross loans of the Bank wili be presented on a contractual basis and suspended interest will
be included in capital provisions {(refer to note 2 for more details- changes in accounting policies disclosure).

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair vaiue of the activities acquired at the date
of acquisition. Separately recognised goodwill is tested annually for impairment and whenever there are indications
for impairment, it is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are not
reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entily include the carrying amount of goodwili refating to the entity
sold. : ' '

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those
cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit the business combinations in
which the geodwill arose.

Software and other intangible assets _

An intangible asset is recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits will arise through its use. Included
in the cost of the intangible asset are any direct costs that are necessary for the creation, production and preparation
of the intangible asset for proper use. Such costs are:

- Staff costs which are identifiable and can be directly attributed to the specific intangible asset.
- External associates’ fees that relate to the creation of the intangible asset.

The acquisition cost of software which will generate future economic: benefits for the Group is recognised as an
intangible asset. Costs associated with maintenance of computer software are charged to the consolidated income
statement of the year in which they were incurred. On the contrary, expenditure which enhances or extends the
performance of computer software beyond their original technical specifications or software conversion costs are
added to the original acquisition cost of the intangible only if they can be reliably measured. Computer software is
amortised aver a period of 3 years.

‘Intangible assets are reviewed for impairment when events relating to changes to circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may not be recoverable. If the tarrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount then the intangible
assets are writteri down to their recoverable amount.

Useful economic lives of the intangible assets are reviewed and, if appropriate, adjusted at each balance sheet date.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangibles that have an indefinite useful life, inciuding goodwill, are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment or more frequently if events and changes in circumstances indicate that they might be..
impaired. Assets that are subject to depreciation or amortisation are reviewed for impaimment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows {(cash
generating units). Non-financial assets, other than:goodwill, that have suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date

Property, plant and equipment _

Land and buildings are shown at fair value, based on periodic valuations by external independent professional
valuers, less subsequent depreciation for buildings. Any accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is
eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net carrying amount is restated to the revalued
amount of the asset. Revaluations are carried out with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount does-
not differ materially from the fair value determined at the balance sheet date  All other property, plant and equipment
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
items are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly-attributable to

the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

Property, plant and equipment are tested for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
camying amount may not be recoverable. If the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount then the property,
plant and equipment items are written down to their recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of

fair value of the assets less cost to sell and its value in use.

plant and equipment, as appropriate, only when i is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the consolidated income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred,

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line
method, over their estimated useful lives. The annual depreciation rates are as follows:

Buildings 2%
Leasehold improvements 3% :
- Furniture, fitting and equipment 10%-20%

The residual values and useful lives of the tangible assets are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting
date. Any gains or losses on disposais of property, plant and equipment are included in the consolidated income
statement and are determined by the difference between the selling price and the carrying amount. When revaiued
assets are disposed, the amounts included in the fair value reserves are transferred to retained eamings/accumulated

losses.

Investment property _
Investment property comprises land and buildings that are not occupied for use by, orin the operations of, the Group,

nor for sale in the ordinary course of business, but are held primarily for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, inciuding transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at fair value, ‘as at the reporting date. Gains or iosses arising from changes in
the fair values of investment properties are included in the consolidated profit or loss. Valuations are carried out by
independent quzlified valuers applying valuation models recommended by the International Valuation Standards

-Council.

When the use of the property changes such that it is reclassified as property and equipment, ite fair vaiue at the date
- of reclassifications becomes its cost for subsequent reporting.

Investment properties held under operating leases by third parties are classified as investment properties in the
consolidated statement of financiat position. The rental income arising from operating leases are recognised on a

straight-line basis over the duration of the lease.

Operating leases ,
The Group leases a number of branch premises under operating leases. L eases in which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leaseg. Payments made under

Mandatory cash balances with Central Bank of Cyprus {minimum reserve account)
The mandatory cash balances with the Central Bank of Cyprus are carried at amorised cost and are not available
for financing the daily operations of the Bank, and as a result, are not considered part of cash and cash equivalents

for the purposes of the consolidated cash flow statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise balarices with maturity. of less than three months since acquired. Specifically
they include cash on hand, deposits with other banks and other placements with maturities of less than three months.

Financlal {iabilities
The financial liabilities of the Group are financial liabilities measured at amortised cost Financial liabifities are
written off when they are expired

The financial liabilities measured at amortised cost consist of customer or other banks deposits and other financial
liabilities. ' '

Due to Banks and customers

Due fo Banks and due to customers are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in interest expense in the consolidated income statement using the effective interest
method. Dué to banks and due to customers are derecognised when they are extinguished, that is, when the
obligation is discharged. ’

Provisions

Provisions in respect of restructuring expenses and legal obligations are recognised when. a) the Group has a present
{egal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, b) it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation and c) the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are-not recognised for future
operating losses.

When there is number of similar obligations, the probability that an outfiow will be required to settle the obligation is
determined by taking into consideration the classification of the obligations as a total. The provision is included even
if the probability of an outfiow due 1o an obligation included within the total obligations is small,

Provisions aré measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settie the obligation
using a rate that reflects current market assessments of the time valie of money and the risks spacific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time Is recognised as interest expense.

‘Flnancial guarantee ¢ontracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to make specific payments in order to reimburse

the holder for a loss incurred due to a specific debtor failing to make payments when due, in accordance with the
terms of a credit instrument. As part of the services provided to its customers, the Group enters- into various

irrevocable commitments and contingent liabilities: These consist of financiat guarantees, letters of credit and other

undrawn commitments to lend.

Even though these obligations may not be recognised on the consolidated statement of financial position, they do
contain credit risk and are therefore part of the overall credit risk exposure of the Group (Note 34).

When tHese commitments/contingencies are crystalised creating a liability to the Group, the relating impact is
recognized in the consolidated income statement.

Employee Benefits _

The Group operates various pengion plans. The Group operates a defined contributions pension plan and in the past
it operated a defined benefits pension plan which was terminated in 2012 A defined contributions plan is a pension
plan under which the Bank and its employees pay fixed contributions into a separate fund. The Group’s contributions
are recogfised in the period they relate to and are included in staff costs. For a defined contributions plan the Group
has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay
all employees the benefits that correspond to their service in the current and prior periods. : '

Confributions are recognised as staff retirement expenditure in the period in which they are due. Prepaid contributions
are recognised as an asset to the extent there will be cash refund or _redut:tign in the future payments.
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2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved)

Employee Benefits {continued) .
The Group and the employees contribute to the Government Socisi Insurance Fund based on employees’ salaries

in accordance with legal requirements,

Share capltal
&) Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are

deducted from share premium.

b) Share premium is the difference between the fair value of the consideration receivable for the issue of the shares
and the nominal value of the shares. Share premium account can only be resorted to for limited purposes, which
do not include the distribution of dividends, and is otherwise subject to the provisions of the Cyprus Companies
Law on reduction of share capitai.

¢) The dividend distribution to the Bank’s ordinary shareholders is recognised as a liability in the period in which
the dividend is approved by the Annual General Meeting of the Bank’s shareholders or, in the case of an interim

dividend, by the Bank’s Board of Direclors,

Reiated party transactions
Relates parties include: (a) members of the Group’s Board of Directors and key management personnel of the Group,

{b) close family members (spouses, children etc.) and financial dependants of the Board of Directors’ members and
key management personnel . Transactions of 2 similar nature are disclosed collactively. All related party fransactions
are based on ordinary business practices and are carried out according to the approved credit procedures and

policies of the Group.

Trade payables
Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest rate method.

Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statement of finaneial

position when there is a legally enforceabie right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis-or realise the asset and settie the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of defaul,

insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group or the counterparty.
COrhparatives _

Comparatives have been adjusted to reflect the change in the presentation gross loans. In prior periods the gross
loans were presented on a net of suspension basis which is now changed to gross of suspension basis,

Such adjustment did not have an impact on the profit for the year or equity of the Group.

Where necessary, comparative figures of the previous périod have been adjusted to conform with changes in
presentation in the current year.

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

- The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent obligations and liabilities at balance sheet
date and the reported amounts of income and expenses during the year of reporting. Despite the fact that these
assumptions are based on the best possible knowledge of the Group’s Management regarding current conditions
and activities, actual results may eventually differ from those estimates. :

Accounting estimates and judgments are reviewed and evaluated on an ongoing basis and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are beiieved to be reasonable under the
circumstances. The assessment of these factors determine the basis under which judgement is being applied in

connection with accounting principles affecting the value of assets and liabilities which are not immediately apparent
from other sources.
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)'
Critig' I.accounting estimates and assumptions

Provision for impairment of h_aans and advances to customers

The Bank reviews loans and advances to customers to assess whether a provision for impalnnent should be recorded -
in the consolidated income statement. In particular, Management is required to estimate the amount and timing of
future cash flows in order to determine the amount of provision required and thus the calculation of the impairment

allowance involves the use of judgement. Such estimates are based on assumptions about a2 number of factors and

therefore actual impairment losses may differ.

The carrying amount of the loan is reduced through the use of a provision account and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the consclidated income statement Loans together with the associated provisions are written.off when
there Is no realistic prospect of future recovery Partial write-offs, including non-contractual write-offs, may also occur
when it is considered that there is no realistic prospect for the recovery of the contractual cash flows. in addition,
write-offs may reflect restructuring activity with customers and are part of the terms of the restructuring agreement.

Assumptions have been made about the future changes in property values, as well as the timing for the realisation
of the collateral and for taxes and expenses on the repossession and subsequent sale of the collateral. The open
market values of real estate collaterals are indexed from the valuation report date to the impairment test reference
date, using the latest available published property price indices (CBC index for houses, apartments and land, RICS
indices for commercial properties and shops). For all real estate collaterals, liquidation haircuts of 2%-25% as
provided by an independent extemal provider (depending on the location, property type (urban or rural) and
liquidation method of each collateral) were applied to the indexed open market values (2016 10% to 30%) The time
to liquidation of real estate collaterals, cther than those for which an explicit date was assumed based on the facts
of the case, is 6 years (2016: 6 years). Selling costs are assumed to be on average 4% (20186: 5%) of the recoverable
amount of real estate collaterals and are additional to the liquidation haircuts applied to coltateral values

For significant loans and advances which are individually assessed; impairment allowances are calculated on an
individual basis and all relevant considerations that have a bearing on the expected future cash flows are taken into
account (for examiple, the business prospects for the customer, the realisable value of collateral, the Bank's position
relative to other claimants and the likely cost and duration of the work-out process). Advances that have been
assessed on an individual debtor level and for which no objective evidence of impaimment exists, significant or
otherwise, are grouped with non-significant advances and are classified in groups with similar credit risk
characteristics in order to be collectively assessed for losses incurred but not yet reported. '

Any changes in these assumptions or difference between assumptions made and actual results could result in
significant changes in the amount of required prowisions for impairment of loans and advances. The assessment of
credit risk is continuous. The methodology and assumptions used to calculate the provisions are reviewed regutarly
in orderto reduse differences between estimated losses and actual losses.

In a scenario where the open market vaiue of the real estate collaterals used in the individual and collective
assessments is reduced by 10%, the effect on the consolidated income statement will be an additional impairment .
provision charge of €10m (31 December 2016 €14,1m). ‘ ' ‘

Fair value of bonds, shares and other financial instruments

. The best evidence of fair value is a quoted price in.an actively traded market. The fair value of bonds, shares and
other financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation technigues. The
majority of valuation techniques employed by the Group use only observable market data and so the reliability of the
fair value measurement is relatively high. However, certain financia! instruments are valued on the basis of valuation
techniques that feature one or more significant inputs that are rot observable. Valuation techniques that rely on non-
observable inputs require a higher level of management judgement to calculate a fair value than those based wholly
on observabie inputs. Changes in these estimates and assumptions could affect the fair value of the relevant financial
instruments.
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS {continued)

Fair value of bonds, shares and other financial instruments (continued)

More information on changes in the fair value of bonds, shares and other financiai instruments is disclosed in Notes
18,19 and 34.

Deferred tax asset

Deferred tax assets are recognised by the Group in respect of tax losses to the extent that is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Judgement js required to determine the

If the expected income over the next three years according to the business plan of the Group was reduced by 10%
{with all remaining factors remaining the same - ceteris paribus) the recoverable balance of the deferred tax asset

as at 31 December 2017 would be reduced by €17 thousand.

income taxes

Significant estimates are required in determining the provision for income tax, For specific transactions and
calculations the ultimate tax defermination is uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated {ax issues

If the final resukt of the tax statement of the Group varied by 30% from Management’s expectations due to the
uncertainties in the tax treatments of these issues, there would be no significant change in the current tax liabilities
because the Group maintains a significant amount of tax losses which can be utilised against it,

Fair value of building held for own use and investment properties

In arriving at their estimates of the fair values of properties, the valuers use their market knowledge and professionai
judgement and do not rely solely on historical transactional comparables, taking into consideration that there is a
greater degree of uncertainty than that which would have existed in a more active market, Depending on the nature
of the underlying asset and available market information, the determination of the fair value of property may require
the use of estimates such as future cash flows from assets and discount rates applicable to those assets. All these
estimates are based on local market conditions existing at the reporting date and require significant amount of

judgement.

If the estimated value per square meter used in the calculations for the building heid for own use was reduced by
15% the value of the building would be €3,1m (20186: €3,1m) lower.

If the estimated value per square meter used in the calcuiations for investment properties was reduced by 15% the
value of the building would have been €9,7m (2016: €4,7m) lower.

More information on inputs used is disciosed in Notes 21 and 22.
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4. INTEREST INCOME.

Interest on loans and other advances to customers

Interest on impaired loans and advances to customers

Interest on placements with Central Bank and other banks

Interest on debt securities _

Interest an trading of fair value through profit or ioss financial asséts
Interest on available for sale financial assets

Interest on swap deals

Other interest income

Total

5. INTEREST EXPENSE

Interest on deposits from customers
Interest due to other banks
Total

8. FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Fees and commissions from commercial banking
Other fees and commissions
Total

7. FEE AND COMMISSION EXPENSE

Feesénd commissions from commercial banking
Other fees and commissions
Total -

8. OTHER INCOME

Gain / (loss) on revaluation of investment properties (Note 22)
Gain on revaluation of other investments at fair value through
profit or loss (Note 19) :
Gains from foreign exchange operations
Dividend from available for sale financial assets (Note 18}
Gain from disposal of investment properties
(Loss)/ gain from digposal of financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss (Note 18)
Other income
Total
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2017
€.
15.811616
10.803.196
(683.506)
2.531.774
103.794
240.454
1.717 418
8

30,624.762

2017

€

8.542.361
8.603.218

2017

€
11.225,009
272300

2017
€
1.753.737

93.034
1.846.771

2017
g
667.360

707 057
1.877 673
760.711
61.261

(898)
71,004
4.144.168

2016

1€
17.159.063
15.664.285
(692.553)
651085

(83.137)
1.310.988
14,477

34.024.198

2016

€
10.649.266
4.371

10,653.637

2016

. £
9.225.341
190.950
9.416.281

2016

€

4.853.239
53.608

1.906.937

2016
€
(1.000.160)

733.497
1307236
777.709

61.300
80.312
1.959.694
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9. STAFF EXPENSES

2017 2018

€ €

Salaries and employer’s contributions 15.563.406 14.637.887
Social Insurance contributions 1.013.202 972.510
Retirement benefit cost for defineq contributions plans 1.194.6844 -1.204.914
Other staff expenses 173,723 224,765
Total 17.844.975 17.040.076

Average number of employess 380 353

Based on the agreement signed on March 17t 2014 between the Cyprus Bankers Employer's Association and the
Union of Bank Employees Cypn_,ls regarding the three years 2014-2016, the Ba_nk proceeded with a reduction in the

for 2017.
10. DEPRECIATION AND AMORT ISATION

2017 2016
€ €
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment {Note 21) 463.781 454.107
Amortisation of intangible assets {Note 20) 288.295 140.859
Total 752.076 594.968
11. OPERATING EXPENSES — Analysis by nature
2017 2016
€ €
Sales and marketing expenses 1.268.346 697.557
Legal expenses, supervisory fees and other consultancy fees 2.428.655 1.204.673
Auditors’ remuneration 126,759 122.625
Buildings,software and other assets’ maintenance cost 1.724.932 1.054.101
Operating lease rentals 737.446 668.484
Travelling expenses 458.943 209.637
Printing and stationery 381130 247.837
Telecommunication expenses 300.849 259,386 .
Special levy (1) 1.38?.9;)8 1.514.402
Other operating expenses 1.911.125 1.535.120
Total 11.026.093 7.603.822

The “Legal expenses and other odnsultancy fees” include fees of €220.578 (2016: €48.976) for tax consultancy
services and €84.732 (2016: €19.046) for other assurance services charged by the Group's statutory audit firm,

(1) Until 30 September 2015, Special tax levy of 0,15% was imposed on the deposits of credt institutions as at
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12. OTHER EXPENSES

2017 2016
£ (o
Provisions for impairments of other receivables - 25539
Provisions for impairments of off balance sheet receivables - 11.148
- - 36.68
13. INCOME TAX
2M7 2016
€ €
Current year tax ‘
‘Corporation Tax 9.681 111.758
Deferred tax (Note 26) 1.924.960 (2.142.624)
Total current year tax 1.934.641 {2.030.868)

None of the items in the consolidated statement of other comprehensive income had an impact on the tax charge
for 2017 or 2016. : ‘

The Grbup is subject to corporation tax on taxable profits at the rate of 12,5% (2016: 12,5%).

As from tex year 2012 brought forward losses of only five years may be utilised. The recognition of deferred tax asset
on unused tax losses is based oh management's predictions and evaluations of currently available information as
well as sensitivity analyses performed regarding the future growth rate of loans, deposits, financing developments,
the percentage of impairment of loans and profitability, as well as taking into consideration the probability of
recovering the deferred tax asset before its expiration date. ‘

Up to 31 December 2008, under certain conditions, interest was po’tentia!ly subject to special contribution for defence
at the rate of 10%. In such cases 50% of the same interest was exempt from income tax thus having an effective tax
rate burden of approximately 15%. From 1 January 2009 onwards, under certain conditions, interest may be exempt

from income tax and be subject only to special contribution for defence at the rate of 10%, increased to 15% as from
31 August 2011.and to 30% as from 29 April 2013.

In certain cases, dividends received from abroad may be subject to defence contribution at the rate of 15% which
increased to 17% on 31 August 2011 then to 20% on 1 January 2012 and then reduced to 17% on 1 January 2014,
In certain cases dividends received after 1 January 2012 from other-Cyprus tax resident companies may also be
subject to special contribution for defence :

Geins on disposal of qualifying tites (including shares, bonds, debentures, rights thereon etc) are exempt from
Cyprus income tax

The tax on the Group's taxable profits differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the applicable tax
rates as follows.

2017 2016
S €
Profit/ (loss) before tax _ 6.961.465 {9.115.447)
Tax calculated at the applicabile tax rates ‘872683 (1.139.431)
Tax effect of expenses and other losses not deductible for tex
purposes . 435.714 576.030
Tax effect of income and deductions not subject to tax (1.006.401) {962.729)
Other tax adjustment , (186.568) .
(Tax losses utilised) tax losses to be carried forward {106.747) 1.637.886
Total corporation tax 5.681 111.756
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14. CASH AND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANK

Cash and balances with Central Bank include the mandatory deposits with the Central Bank of Cyprug held in a
minimum reserve account for liquidity purposes. These deposits are not available for financing the Group's

operational transactions.

2017 2018

€ €

Cash (Note 30) 9.730.468 8.634.370

Balances with Central Bank of Cyprus (Note 30) 304.996.611 305.996.600

Cheques to be cleared (Note 30) , 2.108.889 2.348.503
Other deposits with the Central Bank of Cyprus in a minimum reserve

account 18.324.778

Mandatory deposits with the Central Bank of Cyprus in a minimum
reserve account 10.096.191 10.025.034
Total 2692130 iapasenss
15. PLACEMENTS WITH OTHER BANKS

2017 2016

€ €

Bank accounts (Note 30) 24.818.508 36.113.413

Placements with other banks (Note 30) 26.810.783 001.211

Current 51.629.291 87.114.624

Non-current — - -

Total 62 1 87.114.624

Placements with other banks cary interest based on the inter-bank interest rate of the relevant period and currency.
Bank accounts and placements with other banks have maturities of less than three months.

The analysis of the credit rating of placements with other banks, as performed by independent rating agencies, is.
presented in Note 34,

16. RECEIVABLES FROM DEBT SECURITIES

2017 2016
€ €

Receivables from debt securities - 8.75
SOl = 24.288.769

On 23 November 2017 it was decided by the Assets and Liabilities of the Bank that the Bank had no posttive intention

category, a fair value gain of €8.888.030 was recognised on the Group’s consolidated statement of other
comprehensive income.

On 31st December 20186, the receivables from debt securities comprised of Cyprus Treasury Bills with maturity of
less than 3 months (€32.493.165) and Cyprus Government bonds with lorg term maturity (€11 .786.504).

The analysis of the credit rating of receivables from debt securities, as berformed by independent rating agencies, is
presented in Note 34,
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17. LOANS AND OTHER ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

Advances to individuals
Advances to corperate entities:
Large corporate entities and organisations
Small 2nd medium size enterprises (SMEs)
Advances to customers — gross

Provisions for the impairment of loans and advances to customers
Advances to customers — net
Current

Non-current
Total

Provision for impalrment of loans and advances to customers

ASTROBANK GROUP

2017
€
2086.779.265

121.019.486
395.814.063
723.612.814

(210.093.289)

513.519.525

168.029.452
345.480.073
513,519,525

2016
€
210.546.520

94.478.508

461.843.610
766.868.638

{210.427.135)

556.441.503

205.838.584

350.602.619
556 441.603

The following is an analysis of the movement of the provision for impairment of foans and advances to customers-

2017 2017

- After change ~Prior to change

In accounting In accounting

palicy policy

€ €

Opening balance 210.427.135 1152.807.820

Provision recoveries (25.805.196) {25.805,196)

Write-offs. ‘ (20.424.030) (13 434.260)

Provision charge for the year 28.539.379 28,530,379

Other adjustments ' 18.333.030 3.354.122

Foreign exchange differences {977.028) {©677.029)

Balance as at 31 December 210.093 144.484.836

Individual impairment 198.898.522 133.280.067
Collectlve impalrment 41,194.767 11.194.76

2016 : 2016

- After change In  -Prior to change
accounting in accounting
policy policy

€ €
190.280.307  147.720:308
(52.196.327)  (52.196.327)
{15.883.867)  (11.180.902)
67 064.584 67 064.584
21.056.671 1.313.390
95.767 95,767
10.427.1 182.807,820
198.068.389  140.439.074
J2.368.748  _12.368.746

The charge in the consolidated income statement relating to *Provisions for impairment on Ieans and advances™
included the amount of credit €1.353.728 (2016: debit €377.055) which relates to advances written off for which no
provision was created, or for which the provision was not of equal amount to the amount written off and €389.952
(2016, €175.850 provision charge) which relates to relsase of provision on. off balance sheet items. A a result the
mavement in “Provision for impaiment of advances’ in the consolidated balance sheet differs from the charge in the

consolidated income statement.
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18. AVAILABLE FOR SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

2017
€

214.654.860
12,204,149

226.859,009

11.912.438
214.693.989
252,582
226.669,009

66.920.829

157.938.180
226,869,009

investments in bonds (1)
Investments in equity securities (2)

Assets listed in the Cyprus Stock Exchange (2)
Assets listed in Foreign Stock Exchanges (1)
Non-isted assets

Current
Non-current

2016
€

74.074.782
12.204.149
B6.276.931

11.912.438
74.113.911
: 82

TR T

69.069.945

17.208.966
86.278.931

{1) Investment in bonds owned by the Group comprised of government bonds issued by European Union countries

ncluding Cyprus. A

lithe bonds are traded in active markets (Note 34) and are valued based on current market value

i
as quoted in the stock exchange they are listed on. The revaluation gain as at 31 December 2017 was €8.368.905

(2016: €177.195) (Note 29).

(2) The Group owns 19,91% of the share capital of Atlantic tnsurance Company Limited (ATL). The Group's
Management believes that the price of the share which is listed in the Cyprus Stock Exchange is not representative
due to the low volume of transactions and therefore adopted at the end of 2017 the valuation conducted by the

independent firm KPMG, using alternative valuation methods.

Under the ‘Agreement for the Sale and Purchase of Shares in Piraeus Bank (Cyprus) Ltd’ between Piraeus Bank
S.A. and Holding M. Sehnaoui SAL (HMS) which was completed on 28th December 2016, Piraeus Bank S.A. is
committed to either find, within 180 days after Completion, a buyer for at least 50% of the Group's shares in ATL

their respective shareholdings In the Bank at the time of Completion. The agreement was extended up to 30 June

2018. As a result 50% of the investment in ATL is classified as a current asset in the analysis above.

During the year the Group received dividends and interest from available for sale financial assets amounting to

€760.711 and €2.772.228 (credif) respectively (2016: €777.709 and €83.137 (debk) respactively).
19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2017
€
Trading debt securities (1) 15.810.292
Other investments at fair value through profit or loss (2) 12.225.044
28.035.336

Movement analysis:
Opening balance 11.859.747
Additions 15.810.292
Disposals (341.760)
Profit from changes in fair value (Note 8) 707.057
28.035.338
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2016

11.859.747
11.868.747

12.049.250

(923.000)
733.49

—£33.497
11.859,747
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19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(1) Trading debt securities comprise of Cyprus government bonds acquifed principally for the purpose of selling. or
repurchasing thém in the nearterm.” ‘

(2) Other investments classified as “Financial assets at fair vaiue through profit or loss” comprise of a financing
arrangement relating to property obtained by the Group after an agreement with a customer for the settlement of
loans. Based on the fransfer agreement, for a period of three years the customer has the right to repurchase any
property at the initial price plus any cost to the Group up to the date of the repurchase. These financial assets have
been classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group disposed part of the property obtained under the above
agreement amounting to €341.760 at a loss of €898 recognised in the consolidated income statement (Note 8).

An independent valuation of the property was performed by extemnal, qualified and independent valuers to determine
the fair value as at 31 December 2017. The revaluation gain of €707.057 was credited to the consolidated income.
statement (Note 8) '

Risk of fluctuations in property prices

The credit risk arising from "other investments at fair value through profit or loss” is considered to be zero as at the
balance sheet date, since the measurement of these finencial assets at their fair value is connected to the market
“values of the property obtained by the Group, based on the terms of the fransaction with the customer. The fair value
of the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as at 31 December 2017 s approximately the same with
their carrying value. The risk relating to the prices of the property that the Group owns, arises from possible negative
movements in the current property prices. s

On 31 December 2017, other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are exposed to the risk of fluctuations
in property prices. In case of a 5% decrease in the property prices as at 31 December 2017, equity would decrease
by €611 thousand (2016; decrease by €593 thousand).

in case of an increase in the property prices, the positive effect on equity is limited by the provision of the relevant
agreement with the customer, whereby under certain circumstances the client is allowed to benefit part of the realised
profit in case of sale within a predetermined period.

Risk of fluctuations in bond prices

As at 31 Decembe; 2017 the trading debt securities are exposed to price fluctuations of bond instruments. A
decrease/ increase in the market price of the bonds by 5% as at 31 December 2017 would result in a decrease/
increase in net equity by €791 thousand (2016: €NIL).

The analysis of the credit risk and related credit rating of bonds, as performed by independent rating agericies, is
presented in Note 34.
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20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

1 January 2016
Cost .

Accumulated amortisation
Net book value

Year ended 31 December 2016

Net book value at beginning of year

Additions

Amortisation (Note 10)

Disposals / write offs - Cost

Disposals / write offs — Accumulated amortisation

Net book value at end of year 31 December
201671 January 2017

Cost

Accumulated amortisation

Net book value

Year ended 31 December 2017
Net book value et beginning of year
Additions :

Amortisation (Note 10)

Net book value at 31 December 2017
Cost

Accumulated amortisation

Net book value
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Computer

Software

€

7.682 341

(7.474.196)
218.145

218.145

112.814
{140.859)
(1.313)

—189.444

7

7.803.842

(7.614.398)
—189.444

189.444
1.034.631

5

5.780
8.838.473

(7.902.693)
—£36.780

7

Total
€
7.692.341

(7.474.196)

218,145

218.145
112.814
(140.859)
(1.313)
____es7
189,444

7.803.842

(1.614.398)
—189.444

188.444
1.034.621
88.285
938,780

e 1

8.836.473

{7.902.693)
935.780
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21. PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

1 January 2016

Cost or valuation
Actumulated depreciation
Net book value '

Year ended 31 December 2016

Net book vaiue at beginning of year

Additions

Disposals / write offs — cost

Disposals / write offs — accumulated
depreciation

Depreciation (Note 10): ,

Property revaluation — loss .
Property revaluation —accumulated depreciation
Net book value at end of year '

31 December 2016 / 1 January 2017
Cost or valuation

Accumulated depreciation

Net book value

Year ended 31 December 2017
Net book value at beginning of year
Additions *
Whrite offs/ Disposals — cost _
Disposals / write offs — accumulated
depreciation '
Depreciation (Note 10)
Property revaluation — loss
- Property revaluation — accumulated depreciation
Net book value at end of year

31 December 2017

Cost or valuation .
Accumulated depreciation
Net book value

ASTROBANK GROUP

Property Plant and Total
sgquipment .

€ € .
24.707.500 8.979.582  28.687.082
- (3.386.802) _(3.386.802)
21.707.500 3.5692.780 _ 25.300.280
21.707.500 . 3592780  25.300.280
- 179.729 179.729

- (287 814) (287.614)

- 287.613 287.613
(142.350) (311.757) (454 107)

(1 082.500) - {1.082.500)
142350 - 142,350
20.625.000 A460.761 24.085.751
20.625.000 6.871.697  27.496.697
- (3.410.946) _(3.410.946)
20.625.000 3.460.751 24.086.761
20.625.000 3.460.751 24.085.751
233.393 326.234 550.627

: (27 450) (27.450)

- 26.946 26.946
(137.392) (326.389) (483.781)
(233.393)- - (233.393)
137.392 _ - _137.392
20.625.000 3.460.092  24.086.092
20.625.000 7.170.481  27.795.481
. (3.710.389) _(3710.389)
20.625.000 3480092  24.085.092

Property inciudes land of €9.209 thousand (2016 €4.209 thousand) for which no depreciation is charged. The latest
property revaluation was performed in January 2018 The fair value as at 31 December 2017 is expected to

approximate to this vaiue.

The policy of the Group is to carry out valuations of its properly periodically (every 1-3 years). As a result of the.
economic conditions present in Cyprus and their impact on the real estate market, the Group performed revaluations
in January 2018 and in November 2018. As a résult, an impaiment loss of €96 thousand (2016: €840 thousand) wes

recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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21. PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT {continued)

The carrying amount of the owned Property based on cost less accumulated depreciation was €20.625.000 as at 34
December 2017 (2016: €20.625.000).

During the vear ended 31 December 2017, plant and equipment with a net book value of €NL {2016: €46.001) for
which no provision had been made in prior years, was written off In the consolidated income staterment.

Fair value of land and bulidings

the property, plant and equipment carried at fair value, by method of valuation. The different levels have been defined
as follows:

* Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or lizbliities (Level 1 ).

*  Inputs other than quoted priced included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset either directly (that
is, as prices}) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (Level 2).

* Inputs for the asset that are not based on observatle market data (that is unobservable inputs) (Level 3).

Fair value measurements
at 31 December 2017 using:
Quotad prices
in active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical observable unobservable

-aspets inputs inputs
(Lovel é) {Level :) {Level 3)
5 €
Recurring fair value measurements
Land and buildings

— Office Buildings - Nicosia B - -20.625.000
= - 20.625.000

There were no transfers between levels during the year.

55



| ASTROBANK GROUP
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017

21. PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT (continued)

. - Fair valye measurements
. at 31 Decomber 2015 using:

i e 217

s*ignlﬂﬁt

markets for . .. . other . Significant
identical . observable . unchservable

assets . - inputs -,  inpuls
g (_Levél:af o (Lovel :) oo (uewel 3)

Recurring fair value measurements "

Land and buiidings .

- Office Buildings - Nicosia - - 20.625.000
' - - 20,625,000

There were no transfers between levels during the year

Fair value feasurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3).

Office bulldings Nicosia

€ = sl (]
Opening balance 20.625.000 21.707.500
Addtions - 233.393 -
Transfers to plant and equipmerit - -
Depreciation charge {137.392) (142.350)
Losses recognised in profit and loss - _ .
Revaluation of property — accumulated depreciation {96.001) {840.150)
Closing balance ‘20,626,000  20.625.000

During the years 2017 and 2016, there have been a limited number of similar sales. in the locat market and as a
fesutt, the Group had to adopt a valuation technique using unobservable inputs. Accordingly, the fair value was
classified to Level 3.

The comparison method was used in combination with the repiacement cost method and investment method.
Valuation processes of the Group

On an annual basis, the Group e_ﬁgages external and qualified valuers to determine the fair value of land and
buildings. As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the fair value of the jand and buildings has been determined as the

average value based on the valuations carried out by the companies Kikis Athinodorou & Associates Chartered
Surveyors and Property Valuers, and Xenios Stephanou & Associates Property Consultants and Valuers.
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21. PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT (continued)

The Level 3 valuations for land and buildings have been performed using the average of a sales comparison method
and the construction and deveiopment method, similar to the Leve] 2 valuations for land and buildings. However for

Information on fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs {Level 3)

Range of
Fair valve at unohservable Reélationship of
31 December inputs. (probablifity unobservable
2017 Valuation Unobservable - weighted inputs to fair
Description € techniques Inputs average) values

Land cost Price per square  Approximately The higher the price

metre €4.250m?® per square metre,
the higher the fair
value
Office buitding - Nicosia 20.625.000
Approximation Price per square Approximately The higher the price
of building metre €1.750m? for ground per square metre,
construction floor and other the higher the fair
floors and €507  valug
for basements
Range of
Fair value at unobservable - Relationship of
31 December Inputs (probiabliity unobservable
2016 Valuation Unobservable  ~welghted inputs to fair
Description € tochniques  inputs average) values
Land cost Price per square Approximately The higher the price
metre €4.250m? Per square metre,
the higher the fair
value
Office building - Nicosla 20.625.000
Approximation Price per square Approximately The higher the price
of building metre €1.750m* for ground per square metre,
construction floor and other the higher the fair
floors and €550p*  wvalue
for basernents

Sensitivity halysis is presented in Note 3.
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22. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

2017 - 2046

L B

1 January 31.527 490 .BAT7.650
Additions 33.493.049 24.350.000
Disposals ' (958.760) .
Net gain/ (loss) from changes in fair value (Note 8) __667.360  {1.000.160)
Closing balance 64730030  31.827.490

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group obtsined property of a iotal amount of €33.494 thousand {2016.
€24.350 thousand) after agreements with customers for settlement of their loans. Investment property comprises of
land and buildings in different areas in Cyprus.

Fair value of investment property

An independent valuation of the Group's property was performed by external, qualified and independent valuers to
determine the fairvalue as at 31 December 2017. The revaluation loss /gain was debited/credited to the consolidated
income statement in accordance with the relevant accounting policy. The following table analyses the method of
valuation of investment property camied at fair value. The different levels have been defined as follows.

« Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1).

= Inputs other than quoted priced included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset either directly (that
is, @s prices) or indirectly {that is, derived from prices) {Level 2).

« Inputs for the asset that are not based on observable market data {that is unobservable inputs) (Level 3).

.. Fair value measurements
31 December 2017 using:

< Significant
‘ § . other . Significant
i ‘ _observable . unobservable
4y - oy (Level2) {Level3)
T T e R e SR € < h TP E E kg e

Recurring fair value measurements

* Investment property - - 64.730.039
- - 64.730.029

There were no transfers between levels during the year

58



ASTROBANK GROUP

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017

22. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value measurements
at 31 December 2016 using:
Quoted prices :
in-aotive Significant
markets for other Significant
jdentical observable unobservable
assets inputs Inputs
(Level 2 ) fLevel 2) (Levei 3)
) € €
Recurring fair value measurements
Investment property - - 31.527.490
- : - 31.527.490
There were no transfers between levels during the year.
Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs {Level 3)
2017 2016
€ €
Opening balance 31.527.490 8.177.650
Additions 33.493.949 24.350.000
Disposals (958.780) 2
Net gain /(loss) from changes in fair vaiue recognised in the consolidated
income staternent (Note 8) ' —_6687.360 {1.000.160)
Closing balance 64,730,039 31.527.490

During the years 2017 and 2016, there have been a limited number of similar sales in the local market and as a
result, the Group adepted a valuation technique using unobservable inputs. Accordingly, the fair value measurement

was classified to Level 3.

The comparison method was used in combination with the replacement cost method.

Risk of changes in property prices
Risk relating to the prices of property held by the Group arises from possible negative fluctuations in the current
properly prices

On 31 December 2017, investment properly was exposed to the risk of changes in property prices. In case of a
decrease/ increase of 15% in the market price as at 31 December 2017, the equity would decrease/ increase by

€8.496 thousand (2016 €4.138 thousand).

Valuation processes of the Group

The Level 3 vaiuations of investment properties have been performed using the average of a sales comparigon
method and the construction and development method, similar to the Level 2 valuations of lgnd and buildings. The
instability of the market and the lack of fiquidity, factors affecting the demand and as a result the prices of the property,
were taken into account in the valuation of investment properties,
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22, INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) .

Information on fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs {Level 3)
2017

4

‘Description .

Land with buildings
Nicosia

Land with buildings
{arnaca

Land with buildings
Ayia Napa

Plot of land with building:
Limassol

Land with buildings
Paphos

2016

Description

Land with buiklings
Nicosia

Land with buildings
Lamaca .

Plot of land with building
Limassol

Land with buildings
Paphos :

Sensitivity analysis -

All property valuations of the

- Fair value at

31 December

2017
L

16.695.000

10.284.000

+12.250.000

9.130 309

16.370.730

B o Land
surfacein
m

357-16.324

35-26.069
20.722
960-100.001

103-44.500

Fair value at -

31 December .~

2016
Lo |

10.519.000
2.644.260
3.650.000

14.714.230

: Land
" gurfacein
m?

357-8.650
1.041-11.706
2913

100.601

512-29.000

Estimated falr

Estimated fair ;
value of land  Buliding surface value of bulldings
- perm® .- . Inm* . perm®
€25 -€773 150 - 9.100 £0-€2.061
€12 -€1.343 143-1.202 €324 - €3.750
€350 4,035 €1.238
€5 -€775 1.566-6.511 €164-€1.154
€7 - €2.500 111-15 700 €232 - €2.900
Estimated fair Estimated fair
value ofiand  Building surface value of buildings
perm? inm* - perm*
€60 - €448 205 - 1.635- €1.087 - €1.255
€10 - €535 304-744. €333 - €628
€4 - €775 1.566 €390
€10-€725 78-23.118 €202 - €2.451

Group have been classified as Level 3. Significant increases/ decreases in the estimated

values per square meter of property, valued based on the market comparison method could lead to significantly

higher/lower fair values.
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23. OTHER ASSETS

Prepaid expenses
Other receivables

Current
Non-current

24. DUE TO OTHER BANKS AND DEPOSITS FROM BANKS

Current

Analysis by geographical sector
Cyprus

Greece

Other countries

25. DEPOSITS AND OTHER CUSTOMER ACCOUNTS

Cument
Non-~current

Deposits and other customer accounts are analysed as follows:

Deposits from corporate entities:
Large entities and organisations
Smail and medium size enterprises

Deposits from individuals

Total

Deposits and other customer accounts are analysed by country as follows:

Cyprus

Greece

British Virgin Islands
Russia

Other countries
Total
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2017

€
876.459
1.789.962

2.666.421

2666421

2.666.421 .

2017
€

2480674
2480674

2.225.710
254,781
183
.480.674

2017
€
1.103.199.997

1.103.199.997

2017
€

1.318.084
500.241.731
11,640,182
1.103.199.997

2017
€

804.358.516

100.852.843
43.976.790
12.338.732

132 1

1.103.199.997

2016
€
492 877

__682.322
1.176.189
1.175.199

ERTALT

2016
€

2.237.738
2.237.

1.983.357
254.186
195

YL

2018

€
1.060.953.688
11.509.567
1.072.463.255

2016
€

2.392.347
575.045.537
25,371
1%.2?&?55‘

2016
€

712.724.861

119.496.918
71.787.942
25.724.611
42

142,728 923
1.072.463.255
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26. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

ASTROBANK GROUP

Deferred tax assets and fiabilities are calculated on all temporaiy differences under the liability method using the
appiicable tax rates (Note 13). Deferred tax assets and liabilitiés are netted off when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes relate to the same tax

jurisdiction. The movement in deferred tax is as follows:

Deferred tax assets

Balance at 1 January

Change of future utilisation of tax losses

(Credit) / Debit from impaired loans and advances
Balance at 31 Dacember

Deferred tax liabilities

Balance at 1 January .
Adjustment — property revaluation
Adjustment — inflation rates.
Balance at 31 December

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following components:

Deferred tax assets ,
Deferred tax relating to future utilisation of tax losses
Defemred tax relating to ¢ollective provigions

Deferred tax liabllities
Property revaluation (1)
Difference between depreciation and capital allowances

2017 2016

£ e
7641115  5498.491
- (4.711.306) (428.707)
(213.654)  2.571.331
5716155  7.641.115
2017 2016

€ €
883.303 1.064.617
4,108 (181 224)
887.501 883,393
2017 2016

€ €
4.316.809 6.028.115
1.399.346 1.613.000
5.716.155 7.641.115
731422 727.314
156,079 156,079
887.501 883.393

{1 The property was vajued at fair value at the time of acquisition of the Arab Bank Pic Cyprus branch and was
last revalued on 11 January 2018. It comprises of the Group’s headquarters on 1 Spyrou Kyprianou Street, Nicosia.

The deferred tax (charge) /credit in the consolidated income statement relates to temporary differences as follows:

Tax losses R _
Collective impairment of loans and advances.
Total (Note 13)
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2017

: €
(1.714.308)
(213.654)
{1.824.960)

- 2016
2571.331
_(428.707)
2142624
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27. OTHER LIABILITIES

2017
€
Payable expenses 1.842.453
Deferred income -
Outstanding customers banking transactions 17.047.829
Other liabilities 2923516
Total 21.813.798
Current 21.682.858
Non-current 130.910
Total 21.813.768
28. SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM
Numberof Share Capital Share
shares € Premium
€
1 January 2016 3.360.798 3.360.798  158.592.933
Issue of share capital 10.752.689 10.752 68! 29.247 314
31 December 2016 14.113.487 14.11 7 18 247
1 January 2017 14.113.487 14.113.487 187.840.247
Share premium reduction {1) - - {99.285.543)
31 December 2017 14113487  14.113487 _88.554.704

The share premium is not available for distribution to the shareholders in the form of dividend.

2016

€
1.837.571
1.453.245
6.138.714
7.300.758

16,730.288

16.589.378

130,910
16.730.288

Total
€

161.953.731
40.000.003
7

201.953.734

(98.285 543)
102.6§8.191

The issued share capital is fully paid. The authorised share capital of the Bank as at 31 December 2017 was

14.113.487.

(1) On 2 November 2017, the Board of Directors unanimously approved the reduction of the share premium of the
Bank by €99.285.543 (representing the accumuiated losses as per the stand alone financial statements of the Bank
as at 31 December 2016) for the purpose of writing off the accumulated losses in an equivalent amount,

29. RETAINED EARNINGS AND OTHER RESERVES
2017

€

Retained earnings

Balance at 1 January
Share premium reduction against accumulated losses (Note

(89.211.108)

28) 99.285.543
Profit /(loss) for the year attributable to the Group’s

sharehoiders - 5.046.824
Balance at 31 December 5121269
Fair value reserve on available for sale financial assets

Balance at 1 January 315.057
Revaluation for the year (Note 18) 8.368.905
Transfer of realised losses on disposal of available for sale

financial assets ' (275.829)
Balance 31 December 8.408.033
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2016
€

(92.126.529)

7. 57

{99.211.108)

137.882
177.195

315,087
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29, RETAINED EARNINGS AND OTHER RESERVES {continued)

ASTROBANK GROUP

2017 2016
€ €
Property revaluation reserves
Balance at 1 January -
Impairment of property - -
Balance 31 December - -
Total reserves at 31 December 13.529.292 {98.886.051)
30. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
2017 2016
_ . € o 4
' Cheques 1o be cleared (Note 14) 2.108.868 2.348.503
Cash (Note 14). o 9730.468 8.634.370
Balances with ihe Central Bank of Cyprus (Note 14) 304.996.611 305.996.600
Bank accounts (Note 15) : ' _ 24.818.508 36 113413
Placements with other banks — up to three months (Note 15) 26.810.783 £1.001.211
Balance at 31 December 368.465.239 . 404.094.097

31. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
Credit ~ related financial instruments

Credit-related financial instruments include commitments relating to credit guarantees and letters of guarantee,
issued in order to meet the financial requirements of the Group's customers. The credi risk on these transactions
corresponds to the total contract amount. However, the maijority of these facilities are offset by corresponding
commitments by third parties. '

2017 2016

a4 €
Credit guarantees 79.300 324.453
Letters of guarantee 23.073.758 12.779.548
Total 23.153.058 13.104.001

As at 31 December 2017 letters of guarantee of €12.364 398 (2016: €3,662.328) had a maturity date beyond one
year. The aggregate amount of credit guarantees had a maturity date within one year. The amounts are interest free
and are presented at their book value since the effect of discounting is not significant.

Unutilised credit limits _
Loan commitments/credit limits that have been approved but not yet utilised amount to €58.116.358. (2016
€62.437.224)

Legal proceedings o

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016 there were pending litigations against the Group in connection with its activities.
Based on legal advice, the Board of Directors believes that there is adequate defense against ali claims and it is not
probable that the Group will suffer any significant damage that will affect its ability to operate normally.

Operating lease commitments - _ ‘ _
The Group rents several branches, offices and storage facilities- under operating leases, most of which can be
cancelled upon notice. The leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights.



ASTROBANK GROUP

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017

31. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (continued)

The future aggregaie minimum lease payments under the non-cancelable operating leases are as follows:

2017 2016

. € €
Up to one year 253.077 421.133
From-one to five years 12,625 68.648
More than five years

265.702 487.781

Tax issues
Tax years 2014 and 2015 are currently under tax examination, while the tax year 2016 is open for examination. Given

that the tax investigation may consider some of the expenses of the period as non-deductible for tax purposes, or
may differentiate the tax treatment for some provisions, it is possible that additional taxes may be imposed for years
that the tax investigation has not been completed yet by the tax authorities. The Sale and Purchase Agreement which
was signed in July 2016 and completed on 28 December 201 6, includes warranties which impose an obligation on
Piraeus Bank S.A. to compensate the Group for any payments made to the tax authorities in respect of the open tax

years prior to completion.

32. FAIR VALUE OF DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Group uses the following derivative financial instruments for trading:

Forward contracts: These are contracts for trading foreign currency to be settled at a future date. Forward contracts
specify the exchange rate at which two currencies will be traded at a specific future date. The exchange rate is

determined at the trade date.

Foreign currency swaps: These are contracts to exchange cash fiows in different currencies. Foreign currency
swaps are commitments to exchange specific amounts of two different currencies including interest, at a specific
future date. The foreign cumency swap contracts are valued at their fair value (using the current exchange rates) by

caiculating the new swap points at the date of the valuation.

The notional amounts of those contracts provide a basis for comparison with other financial instruments recognised
at the balance sheet, but they do not represent the amounts of future cash flows or the fair value of the derivatives
and, therefore, do not provide an indication as to the Group's exposure to credit and other market risks, The fair
value of the derivative financial instruments may be positive or negative as a resuit of fluctuations in the current
exchange rates in relation to the prevailing terms. Derivatives are presented as assets when their fair value is positive

and as liabilities when their fair value is negative,

The notional and fair values of derivative financial instruments were as follows:

Netional Eair Vaiue
sontract
Amount
Assots Llabllities
€ € €
2017 .
Derivatives held for trading:
Foreign exchange derivatives
Forward contracts 7.332.689 13.170 469.451
Currency swaps 80.708.705 19,097 859
Total derivative financial instruments 32.267 470.110
2016
Derivatives held for trading:
Foreign exchange derivatives
Forward contracts 14.249.899 765.220 741.330
Currency swaps 121.184.531 303.754 806.602

Total derivative financial instruments 1.068.974 1.547.932
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33. GROUP COMPANIES
The -subsidiary companies included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group, their country of

incorporation, their activities and the percentage of share capital held by the Bank as at 31 December 2017 and 31
December 2016 are.

Companios Country of Activities Porcentage . Perceniage
Sr bl B Incorporation holding % ~ holding %

; s O 2007 2016

EMF Investors Limited - Cyprus Dormant 100% 100%

AstroBank Insurance Agency Limited
(Foriner Piraeus (Cyprus) Insurance

Brokerage) Cyprus Insurance Broker 100% 100%
investment properly
Adflikton Investmonts Lid Cyprus owner 100% 100%
Investment property
Costpleo Investments Lid Cyprus owner 100% 100%
invesiment property
Custsofiar Emterprises Lid Cyprus owner 100% 100%
' invesiment property
Gravieron Company Ltd Cyprus owner 100% 100%
investment property _
Kalhur Investment Ltd Cyprus. - owner 100% 100%
_ _ ~ Investment property ,
Pertanam Enterprises Ltd Cyprus owner 100% 100%
) Investment property
Rockory Enterprises Ltd Cyprus owner 100% 100%
N investment property .
Alarconaco Enterprises Ltd Cyprus owner 100% 100%
Langesee Limitod Investment property
Cyprus owner. 100%
Bakkens LImited Investment property
Cyprus owner 100%
Achardz Limited Investment property
Cyprus owner 100% .
Xeopa Limited Cyprus - Investment propetty
owner 100%

All Group companies are being consolidated using the acquisition method gf accounting.

34. MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL RISKS

Like any other banking group, the Group is exposed to a variety of risks. These risks are monitored on a continuous
basis using various methods, so as to avoid the excessive concentration of. risk. The nature of these risks as well as
the ways in which they are managed are outlined below.

The Group's Management believes that the Group has adopted a conservative strategy and taken all the measures
necessary to support its activities and future growth in thie current business and economic environment,

As at 31 December 2017 the Group holds assets which are directly or indirectly affected by the financial soundness.
of the Cyprus economy as follows:

Cyprus Government Debt securities (2017: €153m, 2016: €55m)

Loans and other advances - Loans granted under the guarantee of the Cyprus Government (2017 €60m , 2016:
€74m).
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34. MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL RISKS {continued)

Cyprus economic environment ,
Economic recovery in Cyprus accelerated in 2017 and the medium term outlook is favourably driven by an improving

labour market, broadening investments and increasing resifience. Cyprus continues to face challenges primarily in
refation to public and private indebtedness and non-performing exposures, but while more remains to be done,
considerable progress has bheen achieved. :

Real GDP in Cyprus increased by 3,9% in 2017 according to the Cyprus Statistical Service, compared with a 3,4%
increase the previous year. In the labour market, according o Eurostat, the unemployment rate dropped to 11,0%
on average in the year from 13,0% the year before according to the Cyprus Statistical Service. Average consumer
inflation in the year was marginally positive at 0,5% after four years of deflation (Cyprus Statistical Service). In the
public sector the budget surplus increased significantly and the trend in the public debt to GDP ratio appsars to be
reversing dewnward. Also, in the banking sector funding conditions continued to improve against a backdrop of

favourable developments regarding non-performing exposures.

In the banking sector there have been significant improvements in funding conditions and asset quality. Total deposits
increased marginally by 0,8% in the year, with resident deposits increasing by 3.3%. Loan deleveraging continued in
the year with total loans outstanding dropping by 7,1% and loans to residents dropping by 4,8% (CEC).

Cyprus’ consistent fiscal outperformance and favourable outlcok indicate a more rapid reversal in the public debt
ratio and the ratio of non-performing loans, than previously expected. The outlook over the medium term is generally
positive according to the IMF and the European Commission, while the economy continues {o face chalienges.
Upside factors relate to a longer period of low oll prices, further improvemnent of economic fundamentals in the euro
area and stronger investment spending as property prices are stabilising and as projects in tourism, energy and
public works are being implemented. Downside risks to this outiook are associated with the still high levels of non-
perferming loans, and public debt ratio, and with a possible deterioration of the external environment.

The Cyprus government rating has been repeatediy upgraded following the consistent outperformance in public
finances and the progress achieved in the banking sector. Most recently in March 2018, S&P Global Rating affimned
its long-term sovereign rating at BB+, only one notch below investment grade, and maintained it outlook to positive.
In April 2018, Fitch Ratings upgraded its Long-Term Issuer Default ratings to BB+ from BB with positive outiook. In
July 2017, Moody’s Investors Service upgraded the long-term issuer rating of the Cyprus sovereign to Ba3 from B1
to reflect Cyprus’ economic recovery and maintained its outlook to positive. Moady's Investors Service reiterated its
credit rating and positive outlook on the Cyprus sovereign in a February 2018 update.

This operating environment may have a significant impact on the Group’s operations and financial position.
Management is taking necessary measures to ensure sustainability of the Group’s operations. However, the future
effects of the cument economic situation are difficult to predict and management’s current expactations and estimates

could differ from actual results.

The Group'’s Management belisves that it is taking all the necessary measures to maintain the viability of the Group
and the development of its business in the current business and economic environment. )

Credit risk
Credit risk arises from the possibility of iosses relating to late payments to the Group by its counterparties. Credit risk

management focuses on ensuring a disciplined risk culture, transparency and rational risk taking, based on
infemational best practices

The Group’s Management has established the provisions for the impairment of financial assets based on the
economic conditions and prospects as at the year end.

The provision for ioan receivables is determined using the method of incurred losses as required by the relevant
standards. These standards require recognition of impairment losses on receivables arising from past events.
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34, MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL RISKS {continued)
Credit risk {continued)

Credit risk management _
Credit risk management methodologies are modified {0 refiect the changing financial environment. The various credit

risk assessment methods used are revised annually or whenever deemed necessary and are adjusted according to
the Group's overall strategy and short-term and long-term cbjectives.

The various analyses of economic sectors and sub-sectors, combined with economic forecasts, provide the
guidelines for the determination of the credit policy, which is revised from time to time.

Having as target the minimisation of credit risk, counterparty limits have been set, at the same time taking into
cansideration the credit rating of the debtor, the assigned collaterals and guarantees that reduce the exposure of the
Group to credit risk, as well as the nature and duration of the credit facility. Regarding each debtor's credit rating
analysis, this is carried out by taking into consideration the country’s rlsk but alse the economic sector in which. it
operates, as well as qualitative and quantitative characteristics.

At the same time, limits have been established for the approval of credit facilities and lending procedures provide for
the segregation of duties in order to ensure the objectivity, independence and monitoring of new and exsting loans.

During the approval process the total credit risk is examined for each counterparty or group of counterparties which
are related at Group level. At the same time, any concentration is analysed and monitored on a continuous basis,
with an aim to restrict potential large openings and dangerous concentrations, so that these will be in line with existing
credit policy limits. Concentration of credit risk can arise at the level of an economic sector, at counterparty or group
of courniterparties, country, currency or nature of collateral

Past due advances are monitored on a continuous basis and a systematic segregation between performing and non—
performing advances Is cafried out according to the internal policy of the Bank which takes into account the criteria
ofthe Central Bank of Cyprus. Significant exposures or delays are communicated to the Management which oversees
the corresponding department for taking preventive or comective measures. -

Under the credit risk management framework, there is an evaluation of the effects of extreme but feasible scenarios .
on the quality of the loan portfolio and to the available capital, through simulation of crisis conditions (stress testing).
The simulations examine separately each business and individual portfolio and estimate possible increases of
unsecured advances which are likely to @rise due to future decreases in collateral values. The unsecured exposures
are calculated based on values sfter the application of haircuts as defined by the credit risk management policy.

: ratin fom

The methods for evaluation of crédit rating differ depending on the type of counter party in the following categories.
central governments (purchase and holding of bonds), finarcial institutions, large corporates and SMEs and
individuals.

Individuals are evaluated based on two different methods of internal grading.- The first method relates to existing
customers and is based on the customers' repayment history and thsir general cooperation with the Group, while the
second method is based both on demographic factors and objective financial data (e.g. income, assets etc.) and is
applied fo both existing and new customers,

For the evaluation of large corporate and SMEs, the system uged is Moody's Risk Advisor (MRA), which evaluates
the financial condition of the business based on its economic and qualitative data, but also based on the economic
sector it operates in.
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34. MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL RISKS {continued)
Credit risk (continued)

The evaluation process is performed on a regular basis or when conditions require it so that the customer’ s credit
score is representative of the credit risk being undertaken and functions as a risk warning sign.

The customer’s credit rating is used during the process of approving credit facilities and the setting of respective
credit limits, for interal calculations of the probability of defauit as well as for monitoring changes in the quality of the
loan portfolio of the Group, with the aim to develop the appropriate strategies for avoiding undertaking increased
risks. '

Maximum eregdit r collaterais and other credit improvements

The table below presents the maximum exposure to credit risk that resuits from financial instruments included in the
consolidated balance sheet, without taking into consideration collaterals or any other credit mitigations received. For
financial assets included in the consolidated balance sheet, the exposure to credit risk is equai to their carrying value,

Maximum exposure
2017 2016
€ €
Credit risk exposure from financial assets on the consolidated
balance sheet:
Deposits with Central Bank (Note 14) 315.092.802 334.346.412
Placements with other banks (Note 15) 51.629.291 87.114.624
Receivables from debt securities {Note 186) - 44.288.759
Loans and advances to customers (Note 17) 513.519.525 556.441.503
Available for sale financial assets — investments in bonds (Note 18) 214.654.860 74.074.782
Financfal assets at fair value through profit or loss (Note 1) 15.810.202 =
Derivative financial instruments {Note 32) 32.267 1.068.974
Other assets (Note 23) ___2.866.421 1.175.199
‘ 1.113.405.458 1.098.510.253
Credit risk exposure from off balance sheet items:
Credit guarantees (Note 31) _ 79.300 324453
Letters of guarantee (Note 31) 23073758 12.779.548
Unutilised credit limits (Note 31) __58.116.350 62.437 224
Total off balance sheet items - 81269417 75.541.225
Total on and off balance sheet items 1.194.674,876 1,174.051.478

The Bank obtains collaterals so as to better manage the credit risk that arises from loans and advances. The main
types of coilaterals that the Bank cbtains are: {a) mortgages, (b) bank guarantees, {c} deposits, (d) pledging of shares,
(e) other encumbrances and () personal and corporate guarantees. . '

According to the above table, 31% (2016: 36%) of the total maximum exposure is derived from placements with the
Central Bank angl with other bnks, 43% (2016: 47%) from advanoes.tc cu_stomers and 18% (2018 6%_) is derived
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34. MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL RISKS (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Loans and advances

The following table analyses the quality of the Group’s advances

Loans and advances to customers
Neither past-due nor impaired
Past-due but not impaired

Impaired .

Gross loans and advances (Note 17)

Provision for impairment of loans and advances (Note 17)
Net loans and advances to customers

a. Loans and advances neither past due nor impaired

ASTROBANK GROUP

2017 Advances

276.798.344
149.908.688
296.907.582
723.612.814

(210.093.286)

513.6519.625

e e

2016 Advan
i€

270.589.581
- 152.040.151
344,238,906
766.868.638
(210.427.135)

556.441.503

The following iable analyses the Group’s loans and advanices that were neither past due nor impaired, by intemal

credit rating category
Individuals Large entities Small and
' - &  medium size
organisations enterprises
€ € €
2017
Credit rating category: _
Low risk 60.763.315 94,888.811 87.757.516
Medium risk 7.254.777 - 26.131.925
68.018.092 94.888.811 113.889.441
2016
Credit rating category. 50.533.110 69.584.837 108 462 010
Low risk _8.814.705 4.451.164 28.743.765
Medium nigk 59.347.815 74.036.001 137.205.765

b.  Loans and advances past-due but not impaired

Total
€

243.409.642

-33.388.702
276.796.344

228 579 957
42,009,624

270.589.581

Advances less than 90 days past-due are not considered impaired, unless there are indications 1o the c_:dntrary

The following table presents the ageing analysis per category of loans and advances which were pést-due but not
impaired as at the balance sheet date, as well as the estimated fair value of collateral held.
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34. MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL RISKS {continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Loans and advances {continued)

b. Loans and advances past-due but not impaired {continued)

individuals Large entities Small and Total
& medium
organisations enterprises
€ € €

2017
1 to 30 days past-due {1) 19.919.796 10.262.789 83.855.903 114.038.488
31 to 60 days past-due 4.780.446 10.665.187 15.445.633
61 to 80 days past-dus 2.778.962 448.738 3.227.700°
More than 90 days past-due (2) 11.133.461 - 6.063.608 17.197.067
Past-due but not impaired loans and
advances 38.612.665 10.262.788 101.033.434 149.908.888
Fair value of collatera 35.983.737 6.123.621 110.143.080 152.250.438
2016 .
1 to 30 days past-due (1) .23.357.781 20.442 507 78.535.918 122.336.204
31 to 60 days past-due 4.301.220 - 5.223.590 9.524.810
61 to 90 days past-due 3.388.624 - 1.827.348 5.215.972
More than 80 days past-due (2) 8.844.877 - 5.118.288 14.963.165
Past-due but not impaired Ioans and
advances 39.892.502 20.442 507 1 142 162.040.151
Fair value of collateral 39.154.938 6.375.705 98.612.832 144.143.475

(1) Loans and advances which are 1 to 30 days
that were past due for one day on the last day

{2} The Group has not proceeded to impair the advances in this ca

past due include advances of €58
of the year.

ASTROBANK GROUP

067.400 (2016: €1 06.184.164)

tegory that are more than 90 days past-due due

to the existence of sufficient collaterals and future expected payments. The Management expects that the majority
of past-due but not impaired advances will be repaid; nevertheless, collective impairment provisions are recognised

for these advances based on their credit risk characteristics.

The fair value of collaterals is determined using generally accepted valuation techniques, which include market price
comparisons. Valuations are performed by independent third party vaiuation professionals and the fair values are
amended using official, publicised price indices for property.

c. Loans and advances which have been Impaired
The following table presents ioans and advances which have been individually impaired, as well as the estimated fair
value of collateral pledged, for each category. '

Full provision is made for “conditional write-offs” of loans and advances and the categorisation of these loans and
advances as performing/non-performing depends on the categorisation of the remaining advances of the specific

debtor.
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34, MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL RISKS (continued)

Cradit risk (continued)

Loans and advances {continued)

¢. Loans and advances which have been Impaired (co‘ntlnu_ed)

2017
Loans and advances individually impaired
Total

-Fair value of collateral
2016 .
Loans and advances individually impaired
Total

Fair value of collateral

Individuals Large entities

€

00.148,
400.148.506

. 29.738.938

'111.306.203
111.306.203

36.465.501

érgénlsaﬂons

&
€

867 886
15.867.886

14.667,448

ASTROBANK GROUP

Small and
medium
enterprises

180.891.190 -

180.881.190
-'52.380.305

232,932 703
232.932.703

~ 99.895.851

Total

€

£96.907 582
296.907.562

96.776.692

344.238 906
344.238.906

136.361.362

An amount of €263.765,120 as at 31 December 2017 (2016: €301.439.772) was rmore than 90 days past-due.

During 2017 the Group wrote-off advances amounting to €17.257.918 (2016: €15.817.932).
Collateral and other credit enhancements obtained

As at 31 December 2017 the Group held investment properties and financial assets at fair valie through profit or loss
acquired in satisfaction of debt of €64.730 thousand (2016: €31.527 thousand) {Note 22) and €12 225 thousarid
(2016: €11.860 thousand) (Note 18) respectively.

During 2017 there were disposals of repossessed collaterals of €1.300 thousand (2016 €923.000)

Placements with other Banks

The following table presents the placements with other banks (Note 15) categorised according to their credit rating
as per the international credit rating agency, Moody's, as at 31 December 2017 (apart from (ii) which was categorised.

as per Standard and Poor's) and 2016 (apart from (i) which was categorised as per the Capital Intelligence Agency
rating). '

2017 2016

€ 3

Credit rating Aaa 897.011 .
Credit rating A1 46.212.423  13.076.171
Credit rating A2 531.371 48.061
Credil rating A3 - 18813.009
Credit rating Ba1 418.681 1.651 803"
Cred# rating Baa2 30.000. -
Credit rating Ba3 - 138
Credit rating BB+ (ii) 1.408.700 -
Credit rating BB- (i) - 50.001.389

Credit rating Caa 999,889

Credit rating Caa2 - 999.822
Credit rating Caa3 1.031.216 2.724.231
51.629.291 87.114.624
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34. M_ANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL RISKS {continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Recelvabies from debt securities

The following table presents the receivables from debt securities (Note 16) categorised according to their credit rating
as per the international credit rating agency, Moody’s, as at 31 December 2017 and 2016.

2017 2016

€ €

Credit rating B1 . 44.288.759
- 34288759

Financial assets available for sale

The following table presents investments in bond securities {Note 18) categorised according to their rating as per the
international credit rating agency, Moody's, as at 31 December 2017 and 2016.

2017 . 2016
€ €

investments in bonds

Credit rating Aaa 33.505.764 63.113.425

Credit rating A2 - 1.852.927 -

Credit rating Ba1 20.538.307

Credit rating Ba2 1.392.475

Credit rating Ba3 137.615.132 -

Credit rating B1 . ) . - 10.961.357

Credit reting Caa2 2 -
F%&Lﬁﬂ_ﬁ 54,860 74.074.782

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The following table presents investments in bond securities {Note 18) categorlsed according to their rating as per the
intarnational credit rating agency, Moody's, as at 31 December 2017 and 2018.

2017 2016
€ €

Investments in bonds
Credit rating Ba3 156,810,292 -
15810202

Concentration of risk in financial assets subject to credit risk

a) Geographical sector

The following table presents the carrying amount of the Group's financial assets which are subject to credit risk by
geographical sector. For the purposes of this table, the distribution of the exposure on financial assets in the
geographical sectors has been performed based on the relevant counterparties’ country of operation,
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34. MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL RISKS (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Concentration of risk in financlal assets subject to credit risk (continued)

2017

Deposits with the Central Bank (Note 14)
Placements with other banks (Note 15)

Loans and Advances fo customers (Note 17)
Available for sale financial assets- bonds (Note
18)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (Note 19)

Derivative financial instruments (Note 32)
Other Assets (Note 23)

Credit nisk exposure from off balance sheet
assets:

Credit guarantees (Note 31)

Letters of guarantee (Note 31)

Unutilised credit limits (Note 31)

Total off balance sheet assets

Total on and off balance sheet assets as at
31 December 2017

2016

Deposits with the Central Bank (Note 14)
Placements with other banks (Note 15)
Receivables from debt securities (Note 16)
Loans and Advances to customers (Note 17)
Available for sale financial assets — bonds (Note
18) ,

Derivative financial instruments {Note 32)

Cther Assets (Note 23)

Credit risk exposure from off balance sheet
assets ‘

Credit guarantees (Note 31)

Letters of guarantse (Note 31)

Unutilised credit limits (Note 31)

Total off balance sheet assets

Total on and off balance sheet assets as at
31 December 2016

ASTROBANK GROUP

74

Cyprus Greece Other
countries

€ € €
315.092.802 _ - -
. 999.887 973619 49.655.785
489.830.673 3.205.005 20483,847
137.615.132  19.950.265 57 089.463
15.810.262 . .
- 32.267 .

2.666.421 - -
962.015.207 24.161.156  127.229.085
- 79.300 - -
22.826.845 52.736 194177
_57.081.722 206.778 B47.859
79.867.887 259.514 1.042.036
1.041.983.074  24.420670 128.271.131
Cyprus Greece Other
countries

€ - € €
334.346.412 . .
999.822 2.669.399 83.445 403
44.288.759 - -
405 035.062 11.996.912 49.409.529
10.961.357 . 63.113.425
493.198 575776 -
1.175.199 o - -
887.299.809 15.242,.087 185.988.35
324,453 - Co-
12.424 151 138.029 217 368
61.238.490 165.942 1.032.792
73.987.004 __303.971 1.250.160
961.286.803 15.546.058 197.218.517

Total

€
315.092.802
51.629,291

513.519.525
214.654.860

15.810.282
32.267

2.6668.421
1.113.405.458

79.300
23.073.758

58.118.359

81.289.417

1,194.674.875

Total

- €
334348412
87.114.624
‘44 288 759

556.441 503
74.074.782

- 1.068.974

_1.175.199
-1.098.510.253

324.453
12,779.548
82.437 224

__75.541.226

1.174.051.478
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for the year ended 31 December 2017
34. MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL RISKS (continued)

Credit rigk (continued)

Concentration of risk in financial assets subject to credit risk (continued)

b) Business sector

The table below presents the carrying amo:
the business secter in which the counte
Industrial

2017

Daposits with Central Bank
{Note 14}

Placemenis with other barks
(Nole 15)

Adhinces (Note 17

Advanosa to individuals
Advencas 1o businesses:

Lerge enfiies & orpanisations )
Smell and medium size entenprises
Available for gate financial assets
{Note 18)

Financiel aseels &t fair value
through profit or ioss (Note 19)
Derivalive financial instruments
{Nata 92)

Oihigr assets (Note 23)

Cradit Risk exposum from off
balance shaet asuets:

Crecht guaramiees (Nots 341)
Letters of anamse (Note 31)
UnutiRsad credil limits (Note 31)

Total on and off balance sheet
assets 31 December

2016

gits with Central Bank
(e 14
Placements with other banks
(Note 15)
Receivables from dedit secunibes
(Note 16)

Advances (Note 17):
Advances fo Indwdugls
Advanoces to busmegses:

Large enfiies & orgarvsations
Small and medium size enterprises
Available for sale finanoe assets
[Note 18)

Derivetive financial Insirurnenis
{Note 32)

Other assels (Note 23)

Credit Risk elpuulé from off
balance sheet assets:

Credit puarantees (Nots 31)
Lettera of guarantee (Note 31)
Urnrtflisad credit limits (Note 31)

Total on and off balance sheet
assats 31 December 2016

ASTROBANK GROUP

rparty operates. _
Tourism Commerce Real estate Financial Govermsients
and Insthutions
Construction
€ L} € € € [ ]
- - A15.082.602
51.829.201
205811 429 22,820 20250
-] 582246 - 21.384.763 8.213.458 15.320.816
17.017.440 11.178.329 45.756.378 119.673.333 11.867.808 4.485. 855
- 214.654,880
- 15.840.202
- a2.267
22628507 11,178,758 BI,173.870 127,807,130 292933185 234,065.007
78.300 .
1.305.475 10815 1.480.476 13.684.242 1.432.600
12,200,358 21.320.888 10,263 877 -A.148:135 471187 1717 208
12695818 2.331.608 11.843.653 16,830,300 1.903.677 AN7208
aL145.410 14,610,261 78.017.823 44737.5%0 196,837,003 206882246
Industrial Tourlsm Commerce Rasl "“:i Financial  Governments
a
Construction
LS e € € € €
834,348,412
B7.114.624
- 44,208 768
171 T38 16.950 2.751
1438.426 . 15.379.841 4.317.448 )
74.585.654 32.028.043 59.997.507 121.516.475 22.016.330 5.044.503
- - 74.074.782
‘ ; . . 10882654
16032767 32028 782 15304290 125.964 87 444,523,620 123,408 044
- 824,453 -
1.206.441 30.245 1218.7%0 0.601.423 842,541
12,408, 01§ —2005.173 J0.962.456 1871219 —T0209 — 542790
12614460 — 2035417 12.505658 Jdszrae4z — 1402750 43,780
20649261 3406609 SI899.067  MO2ITIIE M2 12085taw
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Other sactors

130.203.392

68.605.6500

147.825.318

1.659.520
140.163.289

unt of the Group's financial assets that are subject to credi risk based on

Yol

315.002.502

51.628.201

130,676,680

120.117.113
282.425.652

214,864,860
15.810.282

32.287

— 2856421

3234.348.412

87 114.624
44288759

137,883,467
23.108.235
395.464.601

74.074.782

1.068.974

— 1178189
1099510523

324.453
12.779.548
2427224
5641208

1474051478
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34, MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL RISKS (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
b) Business sector {continued)

Risk of counferparty banks .
The Bank runs the risk of loss of capital due to the possibility that a counterparty bank will delay or default on its

payments on any existing or contingent liabilities Through its daily operations, the Bank enters into transactions with
other banks and financiat institutions. By entering into these transactions the Bank runs the risk of incurring losses in
the event of late repayments or defautt of existing and contingent liabilities of the counterparty banks.

The limits set for counterparty banks reflect the level of risk that is considered acceptable and are then distributed to
the Treasury Department or to any other service departments where this kind of risk exists, based on the needs and
volume of transactions within each service depariment. Generally, the limits are determined by banking sector
evaluation models, as well as by the requirements of the supervisory authorities. The credit limit set for each
counterparty is divided into sub-limits covering placements, investments, foreign exchange trading as well as the
daily clearing limit. Actual positions are monitored against the iimits on a daily basis and in real time.

Country risk .

The Bank runs the risk of losing capital due to possible political, economic and other events in a particular country
where the Bank’s capital or liquid funds have been placed or invested in local banks and financial institutions. All
countries are evaluated based on their size, economic data and country prospects and credit-worthiness rates
provided by international credit rating agencies (Fitch, Moody's and Standard & Poor's). Actual country positions are
monitored against their iimits on a daily basis. Review of the limits is performed at least once a year with smaller
countries with a lower degree of credit-worthinéss going through a more extended and more frequent analysis and
evaluation, where appropriate. : '

Credit risk concentration

There are restrictions to the concentration of credit risk as per the Cyprus Banking Law and the relevant Capital
Requirements Regulation (CRR) issued by the European Union. According to these restrictions, exposures to
customers or group of connected customers, other than institutions, shall not exceed 25% of a bank’s own funds,
after taking into account the effect of credit risk mitigation in accordance with articles 389-403 of CRR. Exposures to
insttutions shall not exceed 25% of a bank’s capital base or €150m whichever is higher. Where the amount of €150m
is higher than 25% of a bank’s own funds, after taking into account the effect of credit risk mitigation techniques, the
limit shall not exceed 100% of a bank’s own funds. As at and during the year ended 31 December 2017 there were
no violations of the CRR Large Exposure Limits.

As at and during the year ended 31 December 2017 the Bank exceeded the maximum legal lending limit to a major
shareholder under the Cyprus Banking Law primarily due to a credit enhancement provided, in the form of a
guarantee, by Piraeus Bank S.A. as part of the transaction between Piraeus Bank S A. and Holding M. Sehnaoui
SAL (as described in note 3 of the Consolidated Management Report). The Central Bank of Cyprus has been notified
accordingly and has net reguested any remedial action from the Bank.

Interest rate risk : :

interest rate risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments and net interest income will decrease due to adverse
movements in market interest rates Interest rate risk arises due to timing differences in the re-pricing of interest rates
or the maturity of assets and liabilities. Interest rate risk arises mainly from interest bearing banking activities and the
Bank’s loan portfolio, and is hedged to a large extent by acquiring placements in the inter-bank market ‘

With regards to balance sheet items in the Group’s portfolic as at 31 December 2017 a parallel increase in market
interest rates scross all currencies by 200 basis points would result in an increase in profit before tax by €2,7 m
(2016: €0,5m). A parallel decrease in market interest rates by 200 basis peints would result in an decrease in profit
before tax by €2,7m (2016. €0,5m) '

The following table summarises the Group’s exposure to interest rate risk, Included in the table are the Group’s

assets and liabilities at carrying amounts categorised by interest rate re-pricing date for floating rate items or maturity
date for fixed rate items. The table also presents the net interest rate risk position.
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34. MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL RISKS {continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

2017

Assets

Cash and deposits with
Central Bank
Flacemants with other
Banks

Loane and advances to
customers

Available for sale financlal
assets

Financlal assets at fair
value through profit or
loss

Devrivative financial
mstruments

Other asgets -
Total

2017
Liabliitles

Oue o other banks
Customer deposits
Derivative financial
instruments

Other liabilities
Total

Net balance sheet
position

2016

Assets

Cash and deposits with
Central Bank
Placements with other
Banks

Receivables from debt
securities

Loans and advances to
customers

Avallable for sale financial
assets

Derivative financis)
instruments

Other asseds

Total assets

2018

Llabititien

Due to other banks
Customer deposits
Denvative financial
instruments

Other liabilities
Total

Net balance sheet position

ASTROBANK GROUP

Upto1 Betwoen 1 Botween 3 Between 1 Over s
month  and 3months months and 1 and & years years
yoar
€ € € € €
315.002.802
§1.629.201
285.142.953 167.382.167 40.537.162 209.301 247 042
6.495.682 46.960.336 8.508.592 28.807.732 122.882.518
13B.466 16.671.8268 - -
655499194  260.014.329  GODASTE4 28017038 123130460
1.813.517 B67.167 -
677.846.681 143.151.631 282.147.3586 54.329
679.660.98 143,818,788 £82.147,368 —54.328
{21.161.004) 106.195.541  {232.101.602 28.952.704  123.130.460
Upto 1 Betwoen 1 Batwoen 3 Beatween 1 Over 5
month  and3monthe months and 1 and & years yoars
year
€ € € € €
334.346.412 :
37.112.235 50.001.389 - -
19,907 444 12.495.721 - 11.795.504 -
170.117.288 164,592,809 84.801.661 57.463.777 4B.875.088
63.113.425 10.961.357
1.574.3 ZTAB819  {AL0508c  B0220778  4BETEEES
1.570.434 £58.304 . -
€18.808.165 147.210.978 266,834 550 11 509.567
§18.487.560 147869.277 296834550 Jdlsoeser .
{56.813.240) 109620642  (148.720.454) 10161 48,875,588

77

Non-interest
bearing ftems

11.839.337

470.110
21.813.708

Non-Interest
benring ems

€

10.982.673

Total

326.932.139

51.629.281
613.510.525
214.654.860

15.810.292

32267
.666.421

1,125 244,795

2.480.674
1.103.199,657

470.110
1

LIZT.9C45TH
Total

345.329.285
87.114.624
44,288.759

556.441.503
74.074.782

" 1.068.974
1,175 199
1.109.493.126

| 2.237.738
1.072.463.255

1.547,832
88
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.34, MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL RISKS (continued}
Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments and assets and liabilities fluctuates due to changes in
exchange rates. Currency risk arises from a positive or hegative open position in a foreign currency, exposing the
Group to changes in the relevant exchange rate. This risk may arise from the holding of assets in one currency
funded by liabilities in another currency or from a spot or forward foreign exchange trade or from derivatives.

The Group enters into foreign exchenge transactions in order to accommodate customer needs and to hedge its
open positions. The Group's Treasury department also enters into spot foreign exchange transactions withih
predefined and approved limits, as well as transactions in derivatives such as foreign exchange forward contracts
and foreign exchange swaps.

The following risk exposure calculation methods and associated limit structures are used for monitoring:

a. Open position by currency — net positive or negative position in each currency.
b. Total net positive or negative position

The approved limits are systematically monitored and reviewed and are assessed at least annually. These limits may
be modified, according to the strategy of the Group and the prevailing market conditions.

The table below summarises the Group's currency risk which stems from open currency positions on 31 December
2017. The analysis below assumes possible scenarios of movements to take place for exchange rates against Euro.

Currency Change in exchange rate a 2017 : 2016
' ' Impact on consolidated  Impact on consolidated

income statement income statement

€000 €000

United States Dollar +10% (-10%) +30 (-30) +63 (-63)
Pound sterling +10% {-10%) +10 {-10) +6 (-6)
Swiss Franc +10% (-10%) +231 (-231) +39 (-39)
Other currencies +10% {-10%) +0(0) 10 (0)

The following table summarises the Group’s exposure to currency risk_ In the table the ¢arrying values of the Group’s
assets and liabilities are preserited, categorized by currency. The table also presents the notional amount of
derivative financial instruments, categorized by currency.

Euro US Dollar .. Pound  Swiss Franc ~ Cther Total
e 4 = " sterling e currencies
€ - € “RE € €
2017 -
Cash and deposlis with Central Barik 326.488.041 277 142 139.644 22.535 4777 326.932 139
Placements with other barks' 10.945.302 25.432.283  10.085.818 568.688 4.897 202 51.620.201
Loans and advances to customers 474.852.863 21418572 3.524.544 13.689 026 54.521 513.519.526
Available for gafe financial assets 193.253 256 33.606.753 * - - 226.850.009
Assets at fair value through profit or loss 26.035.336 - - - 28.035.336
Property, plant and equipment 24.085.002 : - - 24.085.002
Intangible-assets 936.780 - . £835.780
Investment properties 64.730.039 = . - . 64.730.030.
Deferred tax assels 5716155 4 . - - 5716155
Derivative financial instruments 12.659 ' 14.420 462 : 3.576 1150 32.267
Other assets —3.863.037 —{333,789) —{20.368) —{336,426) {e97.023)  ___ 2.666421
Total assets £933.017.660 80014371 13721400  13.927.396 4460627  1,245141.084
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34. MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL RISKS {continued)

Currency risk (continued)
Euro US Dollar Pound Swiss Franc Other Total
sterling currencies
€ € € €
2017
Liabilities
Due to other banks 2.453.409 17265 - - 2.480.674
Customer deposits ! 919.717.914 147.133.678 29.004,803 199.475 7.144.027 1.103.180.997
Derivative financial Instruments 650 138.7g2 95.691 234,788 180 470.110
Current tax liabilities 91.491 . - 91.401
Deferred tax liabilities 887.501 887.501
Other llabliities - 2668008 __ 486523 ; 21,813,
Total lhbllltlu_ 941.682.808 149.847.741 29.587.117 523.307 7.222.600 1.128.943.571
Equity 116.197.483 : - . 5 118.187.483
Total equity and liabilities 288 _149.947.741 _29.587.417 523,307 7222800  1,.245.141.084
Net balance sheet position 167.271  (69.833.370) (16.866017) __ 13404089  _ (2761073 _—
Net notional amount of
derivative .
financiat instruments _(72.449.984) 69.628.503 _15769.209 _ (15.710.674) 2.762.945 )
Notforelgnexchange posttion  _ 2707287 __ (304867 _ (98808) _ 12308888 & -
Euro US Dolfar Pound-  Swiss Franc Other Total
storling currencies
€ € € € € €
2018
Assels
Cash and deposits with Central Bank 344,822 352 325.552 171.824 7.998 1.559 345.320285
Recelvables from debt securlties 44.288.759 - . - ) 44,288,759
Placements with other banks 58.378.395 19.168.988 1.754.321 226.086 7.586.834 87.114.624
Loans and advances to customers 497.584.952 28.274.848 3.720.988 25.794.828 66.107 556.441.503
Avallable for sale financiel assets 86.278.031 - - ) : 86.278.831
Assets at fair value through profit or loss 11.850.747 11.859.747
Property, plant and equipment 24.085.751 - 24.085.751
intangible assets 189,444 - 189.444
Investment properties 31.527 490 - 31.527 490
Deferred tax assels 7.641.115 - . - 7.641.115
Derivativa financial instrumants 200,884 BEE.541 1.549 - 1.088.974
g 1877970 _ (1200800 72328  _guon (414.008) 1.175.199
Qther assets 877, . i A f 1175189
Total assets 1.108,735.780  _ 49.505.94 5.720.988 25.707.692 —1.240.404 1.197.000.522
Liabiittios
Due to other banks 2.195.091 38.647 - - - 2.237.738
Customer deposits 867.598.446 168.131.854 25.000.643 277.636 10.454,676 1.072.963.255
Derivative financial instruments 854.003 636.401 567 438 - 1.547.032
Current tax lablitles 80.533 - - - 80.533
Deferred tax liabllities 883.303 - ; 6 ; - - 883,393
Other Gabliities —_14408.308 __ 968,881 1.130.57 1 6.
Total llabilities 886.113.864 170.775.783 -  26.188.657 283.811 10.581.024 1.093.943.139
Equity 103.087.663 — - : = _103.087,683
Total equity and fiabllities -989.171.847  170.775.78) _26.188.657 _ 283311 0.561.024  1,197.000.822
Net balance sheet position ~J19.564.243 {4 9.835) {20.467.869) _ 25513881 0 U
Net notional amount of derivative . .
financial instruments [115.489.873) _120.640.705 20400297 [25899.749) __ 3340620 _—
Net forelgn exchange position —1.074.370 __{629.130) __ {69,372) —(385.568) - .
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34. . MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL RISKS {continued)
Risk from changes in the prices of equities and securities

The risk in relation to the prices of equity securities that are held by the Group arises from possible adverse changes
in market prices of equity securities. The Group invests in listed and non-listed equity shares which, depending on
the purpose of the investment, are classified in the appropriate portfolio. Currently all investments in equity securities,
are classified as available for sale financial assets European government bonds, including Cyprus government
bonds fisted in an active market, are also classified under this category.

In a scenaric where the fair value of all financial assets available for sale is reduced by 5%, the revaluation loss on
financial assets available for sale will be approximately €11,3m (2016 €4,3m). As at 31 December 2017 the
investment in government bonds {(see Note 18) is exposed to price fluctuations of bond instruments. A decrease
fincrease in the market price of the bonds by 5% as at 31 December 2017 would result in a decrease /increase in net
equity of €11,5m (2016: €3,7m). ,

The fair value of the investment in Atlantic Insurance Company Limited i valued based on a valuation model. A
decreasefincrease in the value of the share by 10% as at 31 December 2017 would result in a decrease /increase in
net equity of €1,2m (2016 €1,2m).

As at 31 December 2017 the trading debt securities are exposed to pricé fluctuations of bond instruments. A
decrease/ increase in the market price of the bonds by 10% as at 31 December 2017 would result in a decrease/
increase in net equity of €1,6m (2016: €NIL).

The Group is not exposed to commodities’ price risk.
Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group cannot find sufficient liquid funds in order to meet its immediate liabiltties,
without incurring significant economic costs. .

The above risk is monitored and controlled by the Treasury Department, Finance Division and Risk Management
Department. The conformity with the regulations set by the applicable supervisory authorities for liquidity indices and
mismatched maturity indices both in Euro and in foreign currencies, and with internal limits are monitored on a daily
basis.

The monitoring and management of liquidity risk is achieved through the use and mionitoring of the following

Balance in the Minimurmn Réserve Account as specified by the applicable Supervisory Authorities.
Maturity mismatch indices between assets and liabilities for periods of up to one month
_Available liquid assets to customer deposits ratios, broken down into Euro and foreign currencies.
Liquidity Coverage Ratio based on EU regulation 2015/61 regarding the coverage requirement of liquidity
risk. '

anoco

Despite the fact thal some deposits can be withdrawn without notice if requested, the diversity in humber and type
of deposits limits significant fluctuations and consequently contributes significantly to a stable depository base

During the year ended 31 December 2017 the Bank’s EUR liquidity regulatory ratios were at all times within the
corresponding CBC limits and there were no violations, whereas the FCY liquidity regulatory ratio was five times in
breach during February (maximum limit excess 4.87%). As from 1 January 2018 the Local Regulatory Protective
Ratios have been abolished and new macro prudential rules have been imposed. The Bank must maintain additional
liquidity requirements in the form of add-on rates on some of the LCR parameters and deposit categories.

As at 31 December 2017, at the date of this Annual Report and throghout the year, the Bank was in compliance
with the required prudential liquidity indicator of the European Central Bank '
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34. MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL RISKS {continued)

Liquidity risk {continued)

Cash flows from non-derivative financial instruments

The following liquidity risk table analyses the financial
based on the remaining period from the balance shest

The table below presents the contract
io be equal to their carrying values si

2017

Financlal assots

Cash and deposits with Central
Bank

Placements with other banks
Loans and advances to customers
Available for sale financial assets
Financiel aseels at fair value
through profit or loss

Other agsels -

Financial liabllities
Due to other banks
Customer deposits
Other liabiliies

Net lqulidity position

2016 :
Financial asoets

Cash and deposits with Central
Bank

Placements with other banks
Receivables from debt securities
Loans and advances to customers
Available for gale financial assets
Other assets

Financlal liabilities
Due {o other banks
Customer deposils
Other ltabifities

Net liquidity position

ash rivative fin

Cash flows from derivative financial instruments are s
remaining period from the balance sheet date to their

is less than tweive months,

Upto1
month

€

326.932.138
51.628.201
8.976.363
6.485.682

138.466
421

306.838.362

1.813.517
679.830.666

703,457,981
1306.619.619)

346.329.285
37.113.235
10.997 444

117.801.685

_ 1476190

21516848

1.570.434

. 616.948.956
__18.730.288
Rssen
[113.741,625)

igl jnstniments

assets and liabilities of the Grou
date to the maturity date,

ual undiscaunted cash flows. Balances matu

ASTROBANK GROUP

P info respective time bands

ring within one year are assumed

Information on the fair and theoretical values of derivatives is presented in Note 32,
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nce the discounting effect is not considered significant,

Upto3 Between 3 Betweon1 Morethans Total

months  months and 1 and 5 years years

year
€ € € € €
- - - 326.932.139
- . - 51.629.291
10.916.731 152.930.916 57.058.223  406.036.187  637.918.420
46.960.336 15.464.611 28.807.732 129130448  226.859.000
15.871.826 - 15.810.202
- - - - 2,666.421
73.548.8 168.185.727 85.865.955 537.166.635 . 1.281.815.572
667157 - 2480874
144.149.117 284.117 910 - - 1.108.097.603
- - - - 21.813.708
144,816,274 284.117.910 S = 1.932.392.166
{71.267.381)  (118.722.183) .865.955  §37.166.635 129.423.407
- - - 345.329.285
50.001.389 - . : 87.114.624
12,495,721 . 11.795.594 . 44.288.759
1 667.050 B85.837 487 93.080.204  319.419.859 817.825.277
. 69.080.945 10.861.357 6.247.620 86.278.831
- - - B 1,175,199
64.160 164907432  115886.155 325667.480 1.182.112,075
658,304 . 2,237 738
147.501.002 300.216.133 12.008.218 - 1.078.762.308
148249306 _300.216.933 _ 12,006,218 ___ 1.005.730.334
{84.086.146)  (145.308.701) 103,849,937  325.567.480 86,381,741
{ ttled on & net basis

ettled on a net basis in the respective period, based on the
maturity. The maturity of all the derivative financial instruments
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34, MANAGEMENT. OF FINANCIAL RISKS (continued)
Falr value of assets and liabilities

Fair value represents the amount at which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, in an amn’s length
transaction. Some differences may arise between the carrying value and the fair value. The definition of fair value
assumes that the Group will continue its normal operations without any infention or requirement to curtail materially
the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms which would bring about losses to the
Group. Generally accepted methods: of determining fair value include reference to quoted market prices and
transactions for simitar financial instruments. '

With reference to the above, the carrying vajue of all the Group’s assets and liabilities is not mate_ri_ally'different from
their fair value g

Financial assets nof meesured at fair value

a)Placements with/due to other banks _ ,
Placements with/due to other banks include inter-bank placements.and other receivables The fair value of floating
as well as fixed rate placements closely approximates their carrying value since theif average maturity is in most
cases up to three months ' ‘

b)L.oans and advances

Loans and advances are presented net of the relevant provisions for impairment. The vast majority of advances
accrue interest at floating rates hence their fair value approximates their carrying value.

c¢) Deposits
The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated maturity, which includes non-interest bearing deposits, is the

amount repayable on demand. The estimated fair value of fixed as well as floating interest bearing deposils closely
‘approximates their carrying value since their average maturity is less than one yeasr.

The Group uses the following hierarchy to classify and disclose fair value:

Level 1. investments measured at fair value using quoted prices In active markets for similar investments;

Lavel 2: investments measured at fair value using valuation models in which all elements that significantly influence
fair value are based on ocbservable market data either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices),

Level 3; investments measured at falr value using valuation models in which elements that significantly influence fair
value are not based on cbservable market data. '
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34. MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL RISKS (continued)
Fair value of assets and ilabllities (continued)

The analysis of financial instruments measured at fair value per tier classification is presented below:

Level 1 Level 2 Leve| 3 Total
€ € € €
2017 _
Financial Assets
Available for sale financial assets
{Note 18) 214.654.860 - 12.204.149 226.859.000
Financial assets at fair value through )
profit or loss (Note 19) 15.810.262 12.225.044 28,035.336
Derivative financlal instruments (Note 32) - 32 267 - 32267
230.465.162 32.267 24.428 193 254.928.612
Financial liabilities
Derivative financial instruments (Note 32) - 470.110 . 470,110
- 470.110 . N 470,410
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
€ € € €
2016
Financial Asséts .
Avallable for sale financial essets ‘
(Note 18) 74,074,782 - 12.204.149 86.278.831
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (Note 19) - 11.859.747 11.859.747

Derivative financial instruments (Note 32) - 1.088.974

74,074.762 10689874  24.063.808 99.207.652
—

Financlal liabilities _
Derivative financial instruments (Note 32) - 1.547.932
- 1,547,932

There were no significant transfers between levels during the year.

1.547.932
1.547.932

date, A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and reguiarly available from an exchange, dealer,
broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by
the Group is the current bid price. These instruments are included in Level 1. Instruments included in Level 1 comprise
of government bonds listed in Foreign Stock Exchange and classified as available for sale and at fair value through

profit or toss.

of observable market data where it is available and rely as littie as possible on entity specific estimates, if all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2,

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in Level 3.
Specific valuation techniques used to value financtal instruments include:
Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments.

Adjusted comparable multiples of market prices to book value.
Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis and dividend discount modal.
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34, MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL RISKS {continued)

Fair value of assets and liabllities (continued)

The foliowing table presents the changes in Level 3 instruments for the year ended 31 December 2017;

Instruments instruma! “Total
STETTE ] .
1 January 2017 11.859.747 12.204.149 24.063.896
Disposals . (341.760) (341.760)
Gain recognized in the consolidated income statement . 107.067 . _— 707 057
31 December 2017 12.225.044 12204149 24.429.193
Total gains (or losses) for the period Included in the
consolidated income statement for asseéts held at the end of
the reporting period, under gains/ (losses)
Change in unrealised gains (or losses) for the year included in _
consolidated income statement for assets held at the end of the 707.057 - 707,067
reporting period '
The following table presents the changes in Leve! 3 instruments for the year ended 31 December 2016:
Debt Equity
instruments instruments Total
€ S €
1 January 2016 12.049.250 12.165.020 24.214.270
Additions - 39,129 39129
Disposals (923.000) (923.000)
Gain recognized in the consolidated income statement 733.497 - 733.497
31 December 2016 11.859.747 12.204.149 24.063.896
Total gains (or losses) for the period Included in the
consolidated income statement for assets held at the end of
the reporting perlod, under gains/ (losses) '
Change in unrealised gains (or fosses) for the year included in _
consolidated income statement for assets held at the end of the __733.497 — - 733407

reporting period

Referto Notes 3, 21 and 22 for fair vaiue disclosures of property, plant and equipment and investment propérties, which

are also measured at fair value.
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34. MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL RISKS {continued)

Capital Management

The main objective of the bank’s capital management function is to ensure compiiance with the relevant supervisory
capital requirements and to maintain healthy capital adequacy ratios which can support the bank’s growth and
maximise shareholder vaiue.

The capital adequacy regulations which govem the activities of the Bank are determined by the Central Bank of
Cyprus (CBC) and the Europear Central Bank (ECB),

During 2017 and as at 31 December 2017 the Bank was in full compiiance with the Overall Capital Requirement
(OCR) set by ECB which consists of the Total SREP Capital Requirement (Piliar | and Piliar ) and the combined

.buffer requirement. Following an amendment in the Cypriot Banking Law in February 2017 the Capital Conservation
Buffer (CCB) will be gradually phased-in and wil have a retroactive application. The CCB will be increasing by 0,625%
every year starting from 1 January 2016 until being fully implemented (2,5%) on 1 January 2019,

The Pillar il disclosures under the Capital Requirements Ragulation (EU) No. 575/2013 will be available on the
Bank's website by 30 June 2018 (www.astrobank.com) {Investor Relations).

Capital adequacy position in relation to the modified Capital Requirements Directive [V {CRD IV)

The capital adequacy position of the Bank based on the Capital Requirements Directive IV (CRD IV}} and the Capital
Requirements Regulations (CRR) (afier the application of transitional provisions as defined by the CBC) is presented

below:

2017 2016
€ €

Transitional Common Equity Tier 1 funds (CET1)
Additional transitional funds Tier 1 Funds (AT 1)

Reguiatory Capital ‘ _
111.184.981 98.568.344

Tier Il capital (T2) -
Total Transitional Regulatory Capital 111.184.961 99.568.344

Risk weighted assets - credit risk 576.914.911 575.308. 844

Risgk weighted assets — market risk 8.063.013 -
Risk weighted assets ~ operational risk B0.046.078 73042213
Total Risk welghted assets 654.024.002 648.441 057
Transitional Common Equity Tier 1 funds (GET1 ) ratio 17,0% 15,2%
Transitional Tier 1 funds (Tier I) ratio 17.0% 15,2%

17,0% 15,2%

Total Transitional Regulatory Capital ratio
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34. MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL RISKS (continued)
Other risks
Supervisory risk

The operations of the Bank are monitored by the Central Bank of Cyprus and the European Central Bank (ECB)
which holds a supervisory role for all banks in the Eurozone (known as the Single Supervisory Mechanism — SSM).
The ECB completely tock over monitoring fesponsibilities on 4 November 2014. The ECB and the national central
banks together comprise the Eurosystem, being the central banking system of the Eurozone. The ECB executes its
monitoring duties in cooperation with the nationai central banks. As such, in Cyprus the ECB cooperates with the
Central Bank of Cyprus (CBC). ' ' )

With respect to this, the Bank is exposed to a series of regulatory and legal risks:

- The legislative and regulatory measures which may materially affect the Bank and the financial and economic
environment within which it operates.

- The business activities and operations of the Bank are subject to important regulations and supervision and are
likely to be negatively affected by the non-compliance to particular existing regulatory requirements and any
adverse govemnmental regulations and developments.

- The application of a more demanding and restrictive regulatory framework (including the CRD IV/CRRY}, in relation
to, among others, the capital adequacy indices, leverage, liquidity and the disclosure requirements. Changes fo
laws and regulations may also restrict some types of transactions, affect the strategy of the Bank and impact the
fees the Bank charges for certain banking transactions and products. .

The Bank is subject to certain regulatory and legisiative restrictions with regard to the advancing of new loans,
the management and restructuring of existing loans and the realisation of collateral.

Intensity of competition

The Bank operates amidst intense competition that mainly comes from local and international commercial banks, co-
operative credit institutions and savings banks, that offer broadiy similar preducts and services The Bank encounters
compefition within the Cyprus Banking market as well as from banks and financial institutions operating within the
European Banking market. -

A potential increase ih competition, through the supply of more competitive deposit and loan interest rates than those
offered by the Bank, could potentially create pressures on the Bank’s and thus Group’s profit margins.

Legal risk

The Group could, from time to time, be involved in legal or arbitration matters or litigations which could bring about
negative consequences on its operations and results. Legal risk also arises from legal proceedings that are pending
or that could be raised against the Group (Note 31).

Political risk

External factors that are not under the control of the Group, such as political developments in Cyprus and abroad,
could adversely affect the Group’s operations, sirategy and prospects. Indicatively, such factors include changes in

government policy, changes in the policies of the European Union, the European Central Bank and the Central Bank
of Cyprus, political instability or miilitary operations that affect Europe and/or other territories abroad.
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The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the categories shown below:

Loans and Trading Avaliable for sale
recelvables derivatives financiof asgets
€ € €
2017
Assels as per consolidated statement
of financial position
Cash and deposits with Ceniral Bank
{Note 14) 326.932.139 -
Placements with other banks {Note 15) 51.629.291
Loans and advances to customers
(Note 17) 613.519.526
Avallable for sale financial assets
{Note 18} - - 226.869.009
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (Note 19) :
Derivalive financial instruments
(Note 32) . 32.267 -
Other assels (Note 23) 2.666421 - -
894.747,376 32.267 .859.
Trading
€
2097
LiabHities as per consolldated statement of financial position
Due to other banks (Note 24)
Customer deposiis (Note 25) .
Derivative financial instruments { Note 32) 470.110
Other liabilities (Note 27) -
£70.11Q
Loans and Trading Avallabile for sale
recoivables Hvatives financial assets
€ € €
2018
Assots as per consolidated statoment
of financlal position
Cash and deposits with Geniral Bank
{Note 14) 345.320.285 -
Placements with other banks (Note 15) 87.114.624 .
- Debt securitfes (Note 16) 44.288.759
Loans and advancas to customers
(Nots 17) 556.441.503 -
Available for sale financial assets
(Note 18) 86.278.931
Financial assets at fair value through-
profit or loss (Note 18)
Derivative financial instruments
{Note 32) 1.068.074 -
Other assels (Note 23) 1.175.189 - -
1034349370  {066978 86278931
Trading
derivatives
€
2018
Liabllities as per consolidated statement of financial position
Due to other banks (Note 24)
Customer deposils (Note 25) -
Derivative financial instruments ( Note 32) 1.547.832
Other liabliities (Note 27) ____1’_32-
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Financlal assets at

fair value th h
profit o?m:

28.035.336

28.035,336

Other financial
liabilities
£

2.480.674
1.103.199.997

-1.127.494 468

Financlal assets at
fair value through
profit or

loss

€

11.859.747

_—

11858747

Other financial

liabilities
€

2.237.738
1.072.463 255

18.730.2,
To0tan s

Total

326.852.139
51.620.291

613.510.525
226,858.009
28.035.336
32.267

T

Total
€

2.480.674
1.103.199.997
470.110

1127.964 579

Total

345.320.285
87.114.624
44.288.759

§56.441.503
86.278.931
11.850.747

1.068.974

1.175.198
1.133,567.022

Total
€

2.237.738
1.072.483.258
1.547 032
16.730.288
12.979.
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Until 28 December 2018, the Bank and its subsidiaries (together the "Group”) were controlied by Piraeus Bank S.A.
(“PB 8.A."), a company incorporated in Greece and listed in the Athens Stock Exchange, which held 100% of the
parent Bank's share capital. As from 28 December 2018, the Group is owned by a number of investors, none of
which, has a direct ot indirect controlling interest on the Group

The table below presents transactions and balances with the key management personnel and board members, and
connected persons as at 31 December 2017 and 2016:

- 2047 . 2018

R - €

Loans and other advances 278.439 314.949
Interest income 7.027 _7.877
Deposits - - 2.472.168 1.753.342
Interest expense 17,953 19.313
‘Other fees 11.794 -

There were no contingent liabilities or commitments towards the Group’s key management personnel.

Connected persons include spbuses, dependent children, as well as companies in which key management personnel
hold, directly or indirectly, at least 20% of the voting rights during a general meeting.

Remuneration of key management personnet of the Group

2017 2016
€ €
Key management personnel remuneration:
Salaries and other current benefits and employer’s social insurance contributions 985277 597 .664
Total key management personnel remuneration — under their executive capacity (i) 985.277 597.664
Total key management personnel remuneration — as directors - -
{i) Key management personnel consists of the Group’s General Management
Non-executive directors remuneration
. 2017 2016
Total remuneration of non-executive directors 313.292 80.000

During 2018 the Group entered into transactions for the acquisition of fixed or intangible assets or for the supply of
support services with related parties for a total amount of €558.294. Part of these transactions were in connection to
the acquisition of fixed or intangible assets €5.804 with the remaining balance relating to other services rendered to
the Group which have been included in the consolidated income staternent for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Following the change in shareholding, Piraeus Bank $.A. group of companies are not considered to be refated in the
year 2017 and as at 31 December 2017, , ’

On 28 December 2016, a Technical Services Agreement (TSA) was signed between Piraeus Bank S.A (PBSA) and
the Group for the provision of the following services to the Group:

IT Services (Hosting, Support, Operations)

Card Processing Services

Call Centre Services

Swift & Payments Services

Control Unit Support (Internal Audit, Compliance, Risk Management)
Other support services '
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

option of the Group.

The table below presents balances with related parties of the Pirasus Bank S.A. Group {controlling parent bank uniii
28 December 2016) included in the consclidated income statement for the years ended 31 December 2017 and

2016

2017 2016
€ €
interest income
- with Piraeus Bank §.A. . g
- with Piraeus Bank S.A. Group related companies - 64.045
interest expense
- with Pirasus Bank S.A. - 3.631
- with Piraeus Bank S.A. Group related companies - 89.775
Operating expenses
- with Piraeus Bank S A. Group reiated companies - 365.336
- with Piraeus Bank S.A. - 171.360

37. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On the 26th of January 2018, the Bank announced, as part of its strategy to réorganise and reshape its business
model, its decision to proceed with a Voluntary Early Retirement Scheme which took the form of voluntary retirement.
Upon compietion, 16 members of the staff opted to take the scheme and retire from the Bank. As a result, an amount
of €2,0 million will be charged to the income statemant under administrative expenses in 2018,

The Group is currently at an advanced stage of negotiation with USB Bank PLC (“USB Bank®) in connection with a
transaction involving the acquisition by Astrobank Limited, under Articie 16 of the Banking Law, of the assets, the.
liabilities and the business of USB Bank (except for two freehold properties, wholly owned by the Seller and used as
Branches for its Banking Activity and 75% of the shares in a Special Purpose Vehicle owning the Head Office Building
of USB Bank) for a cash consideration to be paid to USB Bank. Upon completion of the transaction, Astrobank Limited
will immediately commence the integration of the acquired business of USB Bank which is expected to be completed
within a period of 12 months from the effective date of acquisition. Astrobank Limited shall finance the transaction
through an increase in its own equity for an amount equal to the consideration,

Other than the above there were no events efter the reporting date which have g meterial bearing on the
understanding of the financiat statements.

Independent auditor's report on pages 11 to 16.
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